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General information

The Company is a limited liability company
incorporated in Bermuda. The address of its registered
office is Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton
HM12, Bermuda.

The Company has its primary listing on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Its ultimate holding company is Fraser and Neave,
Limited, a company incorporated in Singapore.

The principal activity of the Company continues to
be investment holding while the principal activities
of its subsidiaries are property investment,
development and management of residential and
business park projects. The Group's associated
companies are principally engaged in property
investment.

By a special resolution passed on 15 September 2005,
the name of the Company was changed from Vision
Century Corporation Limited to Frasers Property
(China) Limited and the Company adopted the
Chinese name 2 ki ZE (P E) B A 7 as part of

its legal name.

These consolidated financial statements are presented
in thousands of units of HK dollars (HK$'000), unless
otherwise stated. These consolidated financial
statements have been approved for issue by the Board
of Directors on 27 October 2005.

The financial year end date of the Company was
changed from 31 December to 30 September with
effect from 15 September 2005 so as to be co-
terminate with that of the ultimate holding company.
These financial statements cover a period of nine
months from 1 January 2005 to 30 September 2005.
Accordingly, the comparative amount presented for
the consolidated income statement, statement of
changes in equity, consolidated cash flow statement
and related notes are not for a comparable time
period.
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Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of Frasers
Property (China) Limited have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS”) and Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKAS") (collectively (“HKFRS")). The
consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention,
as modified by the revaluation of available-for-
sale financial assets and investment properties,
which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Company’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed
in Note 4.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2
(continued)

2.1 wWBEZE ()

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

IRBFET IR BB B
SEAY

The adoption of new/revised HKFRS

R-ZZFZERF > AEERAKUT
el RIERT BB M B E 2R
ZER R U EREAEE
B - —ZTOF BT
MERBAEBREFELER -

In 2005, the Group adopted the new/revised
standards and interpretations of HKFRS below,
which are relevant to its operations. The 2004
comparatives have been amended as required,
in accordance with the relevant requirements.

64

HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial BB ERFE 19 BMGmE 2
Statements 273

HKAS 2 Inventories BB AR F 258 rE

HKAS 7 Cash Flow Statements BB ERE TR WEmMEL

HKAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in BB ERESH EErEGE ¢ T
Accounting Estimates fhFr 2 B
and Errors M EE

HKAS 10 Events after the Balance Sheet Date BB LR FE 1058 HEHREE

HKAS 16 Property, Plant and BB G ERE 165 mE - BB &

Equipment B

HKAS 17 Leases BB ERFE 175 HE

HKAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign BB G EAE215% HNESFE R B F)
Exchange Rates LB

HKAS 23 Borrowing Costs BB ERE 235 BERER

HKAS 24 Related Party Disclosures BB G ERF 245 BBk 77 B 5R

HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate BB ERE 275 e kB
Financial Statements s

HKAS 28 Investments in BB 4R 5% 2857 NN
Associates wE

HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: BB LR FE 325 ERITA :
Disclosures and Presentation HBRERES

HKAS 33 Earnings per Share BEG LR FE 335 TRz & A

HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets BB TR F 365K BERME

HKAS 38 Intangible Assets BB G ERFE 385 mHR A E



2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement

HKAS 40 Investment Property

HKAS-Int 15 Operating Leases —
Incentives

HKAS-Int 21 Income Taxes — Recovery of
Revalued Non-Depreciated
Assets

HKFRS 2 Share-based Payments

HKFRS 3 Business Combinations

HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale

and Discontinued Operations
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The adoption of new/revised HKASs 1, 2, 7, 8,
10, 16, 21, 23, 24, 27, 28, 33, 36 and HKAS-Int
15 did not result in substantial changes to the

Group's accounting policies. In summary:

— HKAS 1 has affected the presentation of
minority interests, share of net after-tax

results of associates and other disclosures.

- HKASs 2, 7, 8,10, 16, 21, 23, 27, 28, 33,
36 and HKAS-Int 15 had no material effect
on the Group's policies.

—  HKAS 24 has affected the identification of
related parties and some other related-party

disclosures.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

The adoption of revised HKAS 17 has resulted in
a change in the accounting policy relating to
the reclassification of land use rights from
property, plant and equipment and properties
under development to operating leases. The up-
front prepayments made for the land use rights
are expensed in the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease or
where there is impairment, the impairment is
expensed in the income statement. In prior years,
the land use rights were accounted for at cost
less accumulated impairment loss.

The adoption of HKASs 32 and 39 has resulted
in a change in the accounting policy relating to
the classification of available-for-sale financial
assets.

The adoption of revised HKAS 40 has resulted in
a change in the accounting policy of which the
changes in fair values of investment properties
are recorded in the income statement as part of
other income. In prior years, the increases in fair
value were credited to the investment properties
revaluation reserve. Decreases in fair value were
first set off against increases on earlier valuations
on a portfolio basis and thereafter expensed in
the income statement.

The adoption of revised HKAS-Int 21 has resulted
in a change in the accounting policy relating to
the measurement of deferred tax liabilities arising
from the revaluation of investment properties.
Such deferred tax liabilities are measured on the
basis of tax consequences that would follow from
recovery of the carrying amount of that asset
through use. In prior years, the carrying amount
of that asset was expected to be recovered
through sale.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FESTHEME (B)
(continued)

2.1 wWBEE ()

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

The adoption of HKFRS 2 has resulted in a change
in the accounting policy for share-based
payments. Until 31 December 2004, the provision
of share options to employees did not result in
an expense in the income statement. Effective 1
January 2005, the Group expenses the cost of
share options in the income statement. As a
transitional provision, the cost of share options
granted after 7 November 2002 and not yet
vested on 1 January 2005 was expensed
retrospectively in the income statement of the
respective periods (Note 2.16).

The adoption of HKFRS 3 and HKAS 38 results
in a change in the accounting policy for excess
of fair value of net assets acquired over the cost
of acquisition. Until 31 December 2004, excess
of fair value of net assets acquired over the cost
of acquisition not exceeding the fair values of
the non-monetary assets acquired was recognised
in the consolidated income statement over the
remaining weighted average useful life of those
assets. Effective 1 January 2005, the excess of
acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over the cost of business
combination is recognized immediately in the
income statement. In accordance with the
provisions of HKFRS 3, the previously recognised
excess of fair value of net assets acquired over
the cost of acquisition shall be derecognized as
at 1 January 2005 with a corresponding
adjustment to the accumulated losses.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

All changes in the accounting policies have been
made in accordance with the transition provisions
in the respective standards. All standards adopted
by the Group require retrospective application
other than:

—  HKAS 39 - does not permit to recognize,
derecognize and measure financial assets
and liabilities in accordance with this
standard on a retrospective basis. The Group
applied the previous Hong Kong Statement
of Standard Accounting Practice (“SSAP”)
24 "Accounting for investments in
securities” to investments in equity
securities. The adjustments required for the
accounting differences between SSAP 24
and HKAS 39 are determined and
recognized at 1 January 2005;

—  HKFRS 2 - only retrospective application for
all equity instruments granted after 7
November 2002 and not vested at 1 January
2005;

— HKFRS 3 — prospectively on or after 1
January 2005; and

— HKFRS 5 — prospectively on or after 1
January 2005.

2 FTESHBESE (&)

2.1 wWBEZE ()
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(continued)

(i)
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FESHHERE (H8)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 B EZE(E])
The adoption of revised HKAS 17 resulted (i) MBI BEBGTERUE
in a decrease in opening reserves at 1 17REBH TN F—H—
January 2004 by HK$52,817,000. BHzHORERDBE
52,817,0007T °
As at As at
30 September 31 December
2005 2004
R=ZBERE R_ZTZWNF
(In HK$'000) (BT T AENMN) hB=+H +=ZR=+—H
Decrease in property, plant WM  BER
and equipment =R AE R (18,800) (19,311)
Increase in land use rights o 3 56 A AE S N 15,578 16,316
Increase in deferred EAEFT S HR
income tax assets B EE N 1,474 1,375
Decrease in deferred EIEFT 1S HR
income tax liabilities BERD 8,586 -
Decrease in properties
held for sale FHEMERD (4,757) (9,334)
Decrease in properties under R %
development NERaL (52,757) (42,977)
(Increase)/decrease in DHRE R AE S
minority interests (3 1n) R (3,236) 150
Increase in accumulated losses 25T /E5 1810 53,912 53,781
For the nine For the
months ended year ended
30 September 31 December
2005 2004
Bz H=
—EEREF —ZETNF
A +=A
=+HL =+—HA1
(In HK$'000) (BT T AENMN) h {8 A FF
Decrease in cost of sales iH & AR (5,318) (19,059)
Increase in direct BEERKERY
operating expenses 3N 6,694 17,231
Increase in other income H b U A 1 10 (5,200) (7,920)
Increase in provisions 1 [] 8¢ 445 42 0
written back (441) -
Increase in finance costs B 7% & FH 12 00 4,495 9,138
(Decrease)/increase in i & X
income tax expense Cm ) /18 (99) 250
Increase in minority interests > BR R R 2 1 0 - 1,324
Decrease in basic earnings HFREEREF
per share (HK cents) A (B 0.01 0.03
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FEGHBREME (F)

(continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 MBEEE (E])
(i) The adoption of HKFRS 2 resulted in: (i) WME B IEHREERFE?2
SRE B
As at As at
30 September 31 December
2005 2004
R-ZZ2RE —EETNEF
(In HK$'000) (BT T RENMN) hBA=+H +_ﬂ_+ S|
Increase in share-based A% 17 B < {5 1 35 N
compensation reserve (1,054) (308)
Increase in accumulated losses 25T &5 181 N 1,054 308
For the nine For the
months ended year ended
30 September 31 December
2005 2004
BZE #H=E
—EERF —ZEETNF
hA +=A
=+HI =+—H8Lt
(In HK$’'000) (AB®B T T REN) @ A FE
Increase in administrative 1T 30
expenses 746 307
Decrease in basic earnings HFRREREF
per share (HK cents) A (B 0.03 0.01
(iii) The adoption of HKFRS 3 and HKAS 38 (i) M B L ERELEDES
resulted in: FRESGERE385E
o
As at As at
30 September 31 December
2005 2004
R-ZZ2RE —EETNF
(In HK$'000) (BT T RENMN) hA=+H +_ﬂ_+ S|
Increase in intangible assets B & E LN 1,033 -
Decrease in accumulated losses 2 &HE 18 2 (1,033) =
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FEETHEME (])
(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 2.1 REEE (E)
(iv) The adoption of HKAS-Int 21 resulted in: (iv) BB ERRES21
SREH -
As at As at
30 September 31 December
2005 2004
R-BZERE RZIZTETWEF
(In HK$'000) (ABE T TREBEAL) hA=+RA +=ZA=+—8
Increase in deferred tax liability #EfEF: 8 & (&1 0 - (3,938)
Decrease in minority interests 4> 2% i% 5 4 25 5l - 1,575
Increase in accumulated losses  Z & /E5 1810 - 2,363
For the nine For the
months ended year ended
30 September 31 December
2005 2004
Bz HZE
—EERF T NE
A +=A
=tH8L =+—H1t
(In HK$'000) (ABB T TREAN) hEA FE
(Decrease)/increase in Fr 15 7t 5 2
income tax expense CRL2) /38 hn (3,938) 3,938
Increase/(decrease) in LR ERER
minority interests B CRd) 1,575 (1,575)
(Increase)/decrease in basic FRRELREF
earnings per share (HK cents)  (3&70) /5 4
GEALD (0.08) 0.08
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FESBTTHEME (&)

(continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 2.1 wWBEZE ()
(v) The adoption of HKAS 40 resulted in: () HWBE B ERF 405
EC K

As at As at

30 September 31 December

2005 2004

R-ZEZERF N T PF

(In HK$'000) (AE T T A EAL) hB=+H +=ZRA=+—H
Decrease in investment property 1% & ¥ % & (&

revaluation reserve & 18 3 1,714 1,714

Decrease in accumulated losses 2 &t & 8 & 4> (1,714) (1,714)

For the nine For the

months ended year ended

30 September 31 December

2005 2004

Bz HZE

—EERE —ZETE

h A +=A

=+HL =+—HA1

(In HK$'000) (ABM T TRERMN) @A FE

Increase in other income H b U A 12 50 - (15,871)

Increase in minority interests > B R R 2 1 0 - 14,157
Increase in basic earnings FREKRZR

per share (HK cents) 20 (B - (0.06)
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FESTHEME (B)
(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 2.1 REEE (E)
No early adoption of the following new HKFRSs W IR R A LA T B M E AR
or interpretations that have been issued but are SR B AV B EREERISE
not yet effective. The adoption of such HKFRSs o Mz SR B HmEER
or interpretations will not result in substantial IRBTEERNARA G HE
changes to the Group’s accounting policies. HIRERES -
HKAS 19 Actuarial Gains and Losses, BEEER BB K
(Amendment) Group Plans and 51958 1B SEEE
Disclosures CHI R E
HKFRS 6 Exploration for and Evaluation BERBHRE REWERIF
of Mineral Resources A Bl E 65 RfhE
HKFRS-Int 4 Determining whether an BAERBRE HE—ERH
Arrangement contains AR B S5 588
a Lease HE
HKFRS-Int 5 Rights to Interests Arising from BAERBRE gk - BR
Decommissioning, AR RS 55 RERER
Restoration and BEeEHE
Environmental 2

Rehabilitation Funds

2.2 Consolidation 22 @&
The consolidated financial statements include the A MG REREARNT R
financial statements of the Company and all its FERBRARBE=ZZTRAFAN
subsidiaries made up for the nine months to 30 A=+HBIENER 2B #HRE -

September 2005.

(a) Subsidiaries (a) KB A]

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the BB N AR & B A AT I E
Group has the power to govern the financial M REERR  BEES
and operating policies generally accompanying HBAYHEER 2 AEBE
a shareholding of more than one half of the B RITHEAEE TS
voting rights. The existence and effect of Z—ERE gZERSTF
potential voting rights that are currently AR AT fT R s s i 2 BT
exercisable or convertible are considered when SERNLHETE -

assessing whether the Group controls another
entity.
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2 FTESHBESE (&)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.2 #E (#E)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(@) KE L a] (&)

(a) Subsidiaries (continued)

74

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are de-consolidated from the
date that control ceases.

The purchase method of accounting is used
to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries
by the Group. The cost of an acquisition is
measured as the fair value of the assets
given, equity instruments issued and
liabilities incurred or assumed at the date
of exchange, plus costs directly attributable
to the acquisition. Identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination
are measured initially at their fair values at
the acquisition date, irrespective of the
extent of any minority interest. The excess
of the cost of acquisition over the fair value
of the Group’s share of the identifiable net
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If
the cost of acquisition is less than the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired, the difference is recognized
directly in the income statement.

Inter-company transactions, balances and
unrealized gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated. Unrealized
losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

MEBARNENEEEES
BEREEZHENEEARE
BF - WEEFIERILEERE
e =B h HEk o

& BB KB A B 5 R A
BESAREEAR - KB
BOAIZ IS B BB AR E
ZEE  BITZBATAS
RRBEAMEEIAEZ
BE mNEEBETEL
ZEBERARZAFEGE -
EBAGTREZABAIE
B UARFEEZBERKR
BE - BVNREEBEZA
FEFE - M AWERDE
PRz 2 F R - B
B EEMEE B AR B
BEREZATESTERD
B - MR AER
EREANBARZEERE
ZRVE ZEEEEENK
HmERAMER °

SEARAEZRS &7
FETR PR 2 KBRS
ETUEE - RERZER
el BRIFZARSE
EEEAEEEELRR
B-WBRARZEFEERE
EVERRBEBMER
BREHAEES - AEE
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FESTHEME (B)
(continued)

2.2 #E (#E)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(@) K& LA (&)

(a) Subsidiaries (continued)

(b)

In the Company’s balance sheet the
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost
less provision for impairment losses. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted by the
Company on the basis of dividend received
and receivable.

Associated companies

Associated companies are all entities over
which the Group has significant influence
but not control, generally accompanying a
shareholding of between 20% and 50% of
the voting rights. Investments in associated
companies are accounted for by the equity
method of accounting and are initially
recognized at cost.

The Group’s share of its associated
companies’ post-acquisition profits or losses
is recognized in the income statement, and
its share of post-acquisition movements in
reserves is recognized in reserves. The
cumulative post-acquisition movements are
adjusted against the carrying amount of the
investment. When the Group’s share of
losses in an associated company equals or
exceeds its interest in the associated
company, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognize
further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associated company.

ERRRzEERABRT -
KRB R B 2 RE TIRKAR
R EERIE - AR
ARIE W K B B B A &
EARHE QR 2 FEET AR
B o

(b) Bf& 2 A]

MENRIREASEHES
BAFERTHEAENEZ
AR —MRHBEEE20%E
S50% R B2 FHIRE o POH
BRARZERE AR SR
SENBRI W) IR AN TR o

AEBEWER 2B E QT
ZABEHERRBRR P E
R MEGRBRZBEN

R WBRZEESH RN
BREZEREEFEAE - EX
SEEEBERRABRER
SARREEBE QAR Z#R
(BRI EMERREK
RIE) B AEETHER
E—FZER  RIFAEHE
REE AR AEABRIM
IR e
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.2

2.3

2.4

76

Consolidation (continued)
(b) Associated companies (continued)

Unrealized gains on transactions between
the Group and its associated companies are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the associated companies.
Unrealized losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred.

Segment reporting

A business segment is a group of assets and
operations engaged in providing products or
services that are subject to risks and returns that
are different from those of other business
segments. A geographical segment is engaged
in providing products or services within a
particular economic environment that are subject
to risks and returns that are different from those
of segments operating in other economic
environments.

Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements
of each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(“the functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(b) Transactions and balances

(c)

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at
year-end exchange rates of monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognized in the income
statement.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the
group entities (none of which has the
currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance
sheet presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at
the dates of the transactions); and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are
recognized as a separate component of
equity.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(c) Group companies (continued)

On consolidation, exchange differences
arising from the translation of the net
investment in foreign entities, and of
borrowings and other currency instruments
designated as hedges of such investments,
are taken to shareholders’ equity. When a
foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are recognized in the income
statement as part of the gain or loss on
sale.

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less depreciation and impairment
losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that
is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognized as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance are expensed in the
income statement during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
cost or revalued amounts to their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

— Buildings in China Over the remaining
term of lease or 5%
whichever is higher

12% to 20%

19.2% t0 33.33%

— Motor vehicles

— Office equipment,
furniture and fixtures

— Leasehold improvements 20%
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.5

2.6

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields
or for capital appreciation or both, and that is
not occupied by the companies in the
consolidated Group, is classified as investment
property.

Investment property comprises land held under
operating leases and buildings held under finance
leases.

Land held under operating leases is classified and
accounted for as investment property when the
rest of the definition of investment property is
met. The operating lease is accounted for as if it
were a finance lease.

Investment property is measured initially at its
costs, including related transaction costs.

215

2.6
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.6 Investment properties (continued)

After initial recognition, investment property is
carried at fair value. Fair value is based on active
market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any
difference in the nature, location or condition of
the specific asset. If this information is not
available, the Group uses alternative valuation
methods such as recent prices on less active
markets or discounted cash flow projections.
These valuations are performed in accordance
with the guidance issued by the International
Valuation Standards Committee. These valuations
are reviewed annually by external valuers.
Investment property that is being redeveloped
for continuing use as investment property, or
for which the market has become less active,
continues to be measured at fair value.

The fair value of investment property reflects,
among other things, rental income from current
leases and assumptions about rental income from
future leases in the light of current market
conditions.

The fair value also reflects, on a similar basis,
any cash outflows that could be expected in
respect of the property. Some of those outflows
are recognized as a liability, including finance
lease liabilities in respect of land classified as
investment property; others, including contingent
rent payments, are not recognized in the financial
statements.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s
carrying amount only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance costs are expensed in the
income statement during the financial period in
which they are incurred.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2
(continued)

26 ®REW= (A

2.6 Investment properties (continued)

Changes in fair values are recognized in the
income statement.

If an investment property becomes owner-
occupied, it is reclassified as property, plant and
equipment, and its fair value at the date of
reclassification becomes its cost for accounting
purposes. Property that is being constructed or
developed for future use as investment property
is classified as property, plant and equipment
and stated at cost until construction or
development is complete, at which time it is
reclassified and subsequently accounted for as
investment property.

If an item of property, plant and equipment
becomes an investment property because its use
has changed, any difference resulting between
the carrying amount and the fair value of this
item at the date of transfer is recognized in
equity as a revaluation of property, plant and
equipment under HKAS 16. However, if a fair
value gain reverses a previous impairment loss,
the gain is recognized in the income statement.

Investment property held for sale without
redevelopment is classified within non-current
assets held for sale, under HKFRS 5.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.7

2.8

Impairment of assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not
subject to amortization, which are at least tested
annually for impairment and are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. Assets that are subject
to amortisation are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-
generating units).

Investments

From 1 January 2004 to 31 December 2004:

The Group classified its investments in securities,
other than subsidiaries, associated companies and
jointly controlled entities, as investments in equity
securities.

(@) Investments in equity securities

Investments which were held for non-trading
purposes were stated at fair value at the
balance sheet date. Changes in the fair value
of individual securities were credited or
debited to the investment revaluation
reserve until the security was sold, or was
determined to be impaired. Upon disposal,
the cumulative gain or loss representing the
difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant
security, together with any surplus/deficit
transferred from the investment revaluation
reserve, was dealt with in the income
statement.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2
(continued)

2.8 Investments (continued) 2.8 &E ()

(@) Investments in equity securities (continued)

Where there was objective evidence that
individual investments were impaired the
cumulative loss recorded in the revaluation
reserve was taken to the income statement.

From 1 January 2005 onwards:

The Group classifies its investments in the
following categories: financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivables,
held-to-maturity investments, and available-for-
sale financial assets. The classification depends
on the purpose for which the investments were
acquired. Management determines the
classification of its investments at initial
recognition and re-evaluates this designation at
every reporting date.

(@) Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

This category has two sub-categories:
financial assets held for trading, and those
designated at fair value through profit or
loss at inception. A financial asset is
classified in this category if acquired
principally for the purpose of selling in the
short term or if so designated by
management. Derivatives are also
categorized as held for trading unless they
are designated as hedges. Assets in this
category are classified as current assets if
they are either held for trading or are
expected to be realized within 12 months
of the balance sheet date.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.8 Investments (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They arise when the Group provides
money, goods or services directly to a debtor
with no intention of trading the receivable.
They are included in current assets, except
for maturities greater than 12 months after
the balance sheet date. These are classified
as non-current assets. Loans and receivables
are included in trade and other receivables
in the balance sheet (Note 2.11).

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-
derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments and fixed maturities
that the Group’s management has the
positive intention and ability to hold to
maturity. During the year, the Group did
not hold any investments in this category.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated in this
category or not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in non-current
assets unless management intends to
dispose of the investment within 12 months
of the balance sheet date.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FEETHEME (])
(continued)

28 RE&E (&)

2.8 Investments (continued)

d AtEz@EE (&)

(d) Available-for-sale financial assets (continued)

Investments which were held for non-trading
purpose were stated at fair value at the
balance sheet date. Changes in the fair value
of individual securities were credited or
debited to the investment revaluation
reserve until the security was sold, or was
determined to be impaired. Upon disposal,
the cumulative gain or loss representing the
difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant
security, together with any surplus/deficit
transferred from the investment revaluation
reserve, was dealt with in the income
statement.

Where there was objective evidence that
individual investments were impaired the
cumulative loss recorded in the revaluation
reserve was taken to the income statement.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

28 RE&E (&)

2.8 Investments (continued)

d AtHEz@EE (&)

(d) Available-for-sale financial assets (continued)

86

Purchases and sales of investments are
recognized on trade-date — the date on
which the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Investments are initially
recognized at fair value plus transaction
costs for all financial assets not carried at
fair value through profit or loss. Investments
are derecognized when the rights to receive
cash flows from the investments have
expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all risks
and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale
financial assets and financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are subsequently
carried at fair value. Loans and receivables
and held-to-maturity investments are carried
at amortized cost using the effective interest
method. Realized and unrealized gains and
losses arising from changes in the fair value
of the ‘financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss’ category are included in the
income statement in the period in which
they arise. Unrealized gains and losses
arising from changes in the fair value of
non-monetary securities classified as
available-for-sale are recognized in equity.
When securities classified as available-for-
sale are sold or impaired, the accumulated
fair value adjustments are included in the
income statement as gains or losses from
investment securities.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2
(continued)
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2.8 Investments (continued)

AtiEs@EE (B

(d) Available-for-sale financial assets (continued) (d)

The fair values of quoted investments are
based on current bid prices. If the market
for a financial asset is not active (and for
unlisted securities), the Group establishes
fair value by using valuation techniques.
These include the use of recent arm’s length
transactions, reference to other instruments
that are substantially the same, discounted
cash flow analysis, and option pricing
models refined to reflect the issuer’s specific
circumstances.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet
date whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired. In the case of equity
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securities classified as available for sale, a ERAALEZRAZSM
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value of the security below its cost is BRER 8ZFEIFFZA

considered in determining whether the
securities are impaired. If any such evidence
exists for available-for-sale financial assets,
the cumulative loss — measured as the
difference between the acquisition cost and
the current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that financial asset previously
recognized in the income statement — is
removed from equity and recognized in the
income statement. Impairment losses
recognized in the income statement on
equity instruments are not reversed through
the income statement.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.9

2.10

2.11

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is determined by apportionment of the total
development costs, including capitalised
borrowing costs, attributable to the unsold units.
Net realisable value is determined on the basis
of anticipated sales proceeds, or management
estimates based on the prevailing market
conditions, less all estimated costs to completion
and selling expenses.

Properties under development

Properties under development for sale are
classified under current assets and stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost of properties under development comprises
costs of acquisition to the Group, development
costs, capitalised borrowing costs and other
direct costs attributable to the development. Net
realisable value is determined by reference to
anticipated sales proceeds, or management
estimates based on prevailing market conditions,
less all estimated costs to completion and selling
expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognized
initially at fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less provision for impairment. A
provision for impairment of trade and other
receivables is established when there is objective
evidence that the Group will not be able to
collect all amounts due according to the original
terms of receivables. The amount of the provision
is the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the effective interest
rate. The amount of the provision is recognized
in the income statement.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.12

2.13

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks, other short-
term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less, and bank
overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within
borrowings in current liabilities on the balance
sheet.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as
a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.14 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognized initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Transaction
costs are incremental costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal
of a financial asset or financial liability, including
fees and commissions paid to agents, advisers,
brokers and dealers, levies by regulatory agencies
and securities exchanges, and transfer taxes and
duties. Borrowings are subsequently stated at
amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value is recognized in the income
statement over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the balance sheet date.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FESBTTHEME (&)
(continued)

215 EEFT BB

2.15 Deferred income tax

90

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using
the liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However, if the
deferred income tax arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than
a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss, it is not accounted for. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realized or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilized.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries,
associates and jointly controlled entities, except
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2
(continued)
2.16 Employee benefits 216 EEEF

(a) Retirement benefit costs (a) EIKEFIRK K

The Group contributes to a defined
contribution retirement scheme which is
available to all relevant employees.
Contributions to the scheme by the Group
and employees in Hong Kong are calculated
as a percentage of employees’ basic salaries.

The Group’s contributions to the defined
contribution retirement scheme are
expensed as incurred and are reduced by
contributions forfeited by those employees
who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully
in the contributions.

The assets of the scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund.

In addition, the Group’s contributions to
local municipal government retirement
schemes in China are expensed as incurred
while the local municipal government
undertakes to assume the retirement benefit
obligations of all qualified employees in
China.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.16 Employee benefits (continued)

(b) Employee leave entitlements

(c)

Employee entitlements to annual leave and
long service leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave
and long service leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the balance
sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the
time of leave.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-
based compensation plan. The fair value of
the employee services received in exchange
for the grant of the options is recognized
as an expense. The total amount to be
expensed over the vesting period is
determined by reference to the fair value of
the options granted, excluding the impact
of any non-market vesting conditions (for
example, profitability and sales growth
targets). Non-market vesting conditions are
included in assumptions about the number
of options that are expected to become
exercisable. At each balance sheet date, the
entity revises its estimates of the number of
options that are expected to become
exercisable. It recognizes the impact of the
revision of original estimates, if any, in the
income statement, and a corresponding
adjustment to equity over the remaining
vesting period.

The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited
to share capital (nominal value) and share
premium when the options are exercised.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.17

2.18

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events; it is more likely than not that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognized for
future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required
in settlement is determined by considering the
class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognized even if the likelihood of an outflow
with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from the sales of properties is
recognised on the completion of transactions.
When properties under development for sales
are pre-sold prior to completion, income is
recognised on the execution of a binding sales
agreement or when the relevant building
occupation permit is issued by the relevant
authority, whichever is the later. Payments
received prior to this stage are recorded as
deposits received and included in current
liabilities.

Operating lease rental income and license income
is recognised on a straight-line basis.

Property management fee income is recognised
when the services are rendered.

21
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

2.18

2.19

2.20

Revenue recognition (continued)

Interest income is recognised on a time-
proportion basis using the effective interest
method. When a receivable is impaired, the
Group reduces the carrying amount to its
recoverable amount, being the estimated future
cash flow discounted at original effective interest
rate of the instrument, and continues unwinding
the discount as interest income. Interest income
on impaired loans is recognised either as cash is
collected or on a cost-recovery basis as conditions
warrant.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks
and rewards of ownership are retained by the
lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments
made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor are expensed
in the income statement on a straight-line basis
over the period of the lease.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the
Group. It can also be a present obligation arising
from past events that is not recognised because
it is not probable that outflow of economic
resources will be required or the amount of
obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.
When a change in the probability of an outflow
occurs so that outflow is probable, it will then
be recognised as a provision.
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Financial risk management

The Group’s activities are exposed to the following

risks:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group invests substantially in China and is
exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from
Renminbi exposure. Foreign exchange risk arises
from commercial transactions, recognised assets
and liabilities and net investments on foreign
operations. The expected appreciation of
Renminbi will benefit the Group as a whole.

Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of
credit risk and trade debtors are managed in
accordance with the credit policies.

Interest rate risk

As the Group has no significant interest-bearing
assets, the Group’s income and operating cash
flows are substantially independent of changes
in market interest rates. The Group's interest rate
risk arises from bank borrowings. Borrowings
issued at variable rates expose the Group to cash
flow interest rate risk. Borrowings issued at fixed
rates expose the Group to fair value interest rate
risk. Detail of the Group’s borrowings are
detailed in Note 30. The Group has not used
any interest rate swaps to hedge its exposure to
interest rate risk.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and the availability
of funding through an adequate amount of
committed credit facilities. The management aims
to maintain flexibility in funding by keeping
committed credit lines available.
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Critical accounting estimates and
judgements

Estimates and judgements are currently evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors
including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities are discussed below:

(a) Estimate of fair value of investment
properties

The best evidence of fair value is current prices
in an active market for similar lease and other
contracts. In the absence of such information,
the Group determines the amount within a range
of reasonable fair value estimates. In making its
judgement, the Group considers information
from a variety of sources including:

(i) current prices in an active market for
properties of different nature, condition or
location (or subject to different lease or
other contracts), adjusted to reflect those
differences.

(i) recent prices of similar properties in less
active markets, with adjustments to reflect
any changes in economic conditions since
the date of the transactions that occurred
at those prices; and

(iii) discounted cash flow projections based on
reliable estimates of future cash flows,
derived from the terms of any existing lease
and other contracts, and (where possible)
from external evidence such as current
market rents for similar properties in the
same location and condition, and using
discount rates that reflect current market
assessments of the uncertainty in the
amount and timing of the cash flows.
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4 Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (continued)

(a)

(b)

Estimate of fair value of investment
properties (continued)

If information on current or recent prices of
investment properties is not available, the fair
values of investment properties are determined
using discounted cash flow valuation techniques.
The Group uses assumptions that are mainly
based on market conditions existing at each
balance sheet date.

The
management’s estimation of fair value are those

principal assumptions underlying
related to: the receipt of contractual rentals;
expected future market rentals; void periods;
maintenance requirements; and appropriate
discount rates. These valuations are regularly
compared to actual market yield data, and actual
transactions by the Group and those reported
by the market. The expected future market
rentals are determined on the basis of current
market rentals for similar properties in the same
location and condition.

Estimate of fair value of equity instruments
issued in relation to business combination

In accordance with HKFRS 3, the fair value of
equity instruments issued by the acquirer could
be estimated by reference to the proportional
interest in the fair value of the acquiree obtained
in certain circumstances. In estimating the fair
value of shares issued by the Company in relation
to the acquisition of Supreme Asia Investments
Limited (“SAI"), different evidences (including the
fair value of net assets of SAI) and valuation
methods have been taken into account.
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Segment information

fE

The Group is principally engaged in property

development, investment and management, business

parks development and management. Revenues

recognized during the period/year are as follows:

AEBFEREMEER  KERE
BREEE s HERERE - 8/ FR

BRI T

For the nine For the
months ended year ended
30 September 31 December
2005 2004
Bz HZE
—ZERF —EFTF
A +=A
=+HL =+—H1I
(In HK$'000) (AT THREN) h@ A FE
Turnover S

Sales of properties k=7 ES 149,591 525,869
Sales of goods & E M - 727
Gross rental income He WAL= 29,518 15,360
Rendering of services AR - 4,689
Property management fee MEERE 6,611 751
185,720 547,396

Other revenues H U 2=
Interest income A B WA 2,547 618
Others H At 799 2,462
3,346 3,080
Total revenues FOR g 189,066 550,476




Segment information (continued)
Primary reporting segment - business segment

The Group is organized into three (year ended 31
December 2004: four (note)) main business segments:

Property development - development, investment and
management of properties

Business park - development and management
of business parks

Other operations - infrastructure investment and
securities investment

Note:

On 30 June 2004, the Group entered into various sale and
purchase agreements to sell the information technology
business segment.
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5 Segment information (continued) 5 pEHER (&)
The segment results for the nine months ended 30 HE-_ZTZT ﬂﬁﬂﬂ +HIEAEA
September 2005 are as follows: ZAMEBWAT
Business Other
Property park operations Corporate Group

(In HK$'000) (ABETFTREN) Y % BEE Ht¥® LERE X5E
Total gross segment sales 9 2045 & 28 @5 151,052 34,725 - - 185,777
Inter-segment sales 75 B E (57) - - - (57)
Turnover =3 150,995 34,725 - - 185,720
Operating profit/(loss) KERT (EE) 82,979 51,404 634 (17,003) 118,014
Finance costs &R (18,286)
Share of results of JE 115 Bk %

associated companies NGIE¥: (20) - - - (20)
Profit before income tax % %4 A 4 A 99,708
Income tax expense Fris B (1,459)
Profit for the period B 98,249
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5 Segment information (continued) 5 pEHER (&)
The segment results for the year ended 31 December HE_TZNF+_A=+—HBILHF
2004 are as follows: EZ2naEERT :
Business Information Other
Property park technology operations  Corporate Group

(In HK$'000) (AAETTREMN) ES BER AARR HuEE LERE AEHE
Total gross segment sales D HEE LT 527,835 14,161 5,416 = = a2
Inter-segment sales BHHEESR - (16) = = - (16)
Turnover EEE 527,835 14,145 5,416 - - 547,396
Operating profit/(loss) weRf/ (58

before gain on disposal (R ENB

of subsidiaries A€ 41,890 39,680 (7,475) (5,034) (24,696) 44,365
Gain on disposal HENBA K

of subsidiaries - - 6,385 - - 6,385
Operating profit/(loss) LR/ (BE) 41,890 39,680 (1,090) (5,034)  (24,696) 50,750
Finance costs BBER (16,071)
Share of results of E(REE DA

associated companies B4 581 - - - - 581
Share of results of a jointly &1 £ E

controlled entity PEXR - - - (3,920) = (3,920
Profit before income tax % #i A1 % 7l 31,340
Income tax expense FEHRY (5,480)
Profit for the year FEEMN 25,860
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7 BB E # ()

kR ESBEEMT -

5 Segment information (continued) 5

Other segment terms included in the income
statements are as follows:

For the nine months ended 30 September 2005
BE-ZTREAAZTHLEAEA

Business Other
Property park operations Corporate Group
(In HK$'000) (AEBTTREM) mE BXE HUXK¥ LXK x5E
Depreciation nE 1,442 278 7 646 2,373
Amortization H3H 69 669 - - 738
Profit on disposal HEME -
of property, plant EUEL
and equipment 2 (138) - - (83) (221)
Provision written back RO (7,496) (34,094) (762) - (42,352)
Excess of fair value of net FkBEFEEL
assets acquired over the AT ERLYE
cost of acquisition of il =NGL- 55
interests in subsidiaries ZHAZHE (49,519) - - - (49,519)
For the year ended 31 December 2004
HE_ZTMFE+_A=1+—-HILEE
Business Information Other
Property park technology operations Corporate Group
(In HK$'000) (WEBTRREM) WX BRE EANR EtXx% ©0EXRE  F&E
Depreciation e 1,282 271 621 = 841 3,015
Amortization i 44 = = - - 44
(Profit)/loss on disposal HENE  BE
of property, plant fEz (ar)/
and equipment B = 10 (2) = (7) 1
Provision (written back)/ (Bm),/
made ey - (75) 4,074 4,077 - 8,076
Realisation of negative AaEE
goodwill 25 (517) - - - - (517)
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5 Segment information (continued) 5 pEHER (&)
The segment assets and liabilities at 30 September RZEERFNA=THZOHEE
2005 and capital expenditure for the nine months REBEUREBEEZEERLENREAZER
then ended are as follows: AR
Business Other
Property park operations Corporate Group
(In HK$'000) (AB® T AEN) L/ BEE HtX® LERE X5E
Segment assets DIEE 1,953,604 678,783 9,605 - 2,641,992
Interests in associated B & A A
companies ey 173 - - - 173
Corporate assets TrEEE - - - 111,495 111,495
Total assets BEE 1,953,777 678,783 9,605 111,495 2,753,660
Segment liabilities HAEE 949,596 369,369 833 - 1,319,798
Corporate liabilities rEEE - - - 61,571 61,571
Total liabilities A 949,596 369,369 833 61,571 1,381,369
Capital expenditure BEARRAX 1,325 40,488 - 430 42,243

The segment assets and liabilities at 31 December R-ZZEZNF+ _A=+—HZHBEE
2004 and capital expenditure for the year then ended FEEAREBEZEERILEEZEAR S 0

are as follows: T
Business  Information Other
Property park technology  operations  Corporate Group
(In HK$'000) (NBETTREN) ES HEE AARE  HE4XER  AERE KEE
Segment assets NHEE 810,833 535552 9,571 25 - 1,355,981
Interests in associated BENAER
companies 193 - - - - 193
Corporate assets TEREE - - - - 128811 128811
Total assets BEE 811,026 535,552 9,571 25 128,811 1,484,985
Segment liabilities HHMEE 404,222 268,955 959 13 - 674,149
Corporate liabilities TrEEE - - - - 62,102 62,102
Total liabilities BefkE 404,222 268,955 959 13 62,102 736,251
Capital expenditure BERRR 319 155,052 14 - 4 155,389
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Segment information (continued)

Segment assets consist primarily of property, plant
and equipment, investment properties, land use rights,
properties held for sale, properties under
development, debtors and prepayments and operating
cash. They exclude interests in associated companies.

Segment liabilities comprise operating liabilities.

Capital expenditure comprises additions to land use
rights, property, plant and equipment.

Secondary reporting format - geographical
segments

The Group's three business segments operate in two
main geographical areas:

Hong Kong - property investment, development
and management, as well as
securities investment

China — property investment, development
and management, development and
management of business parks

The Group's turnover sales are mainly derived from
Hong Kong and China:

7 BB E # ()

DHEETZEREME  BMBEER
B REDE tHERE THE
WME - BRTYE - BUREREEN
RENREZERS  ETBEBRER

EARAXBREAELHERE ¥
% BEM®&ME -

REBERA -HED

ARESEEBTEEMALE L
7

'R — PMERE BREEE-
AR EHKRE
B - MERE - ERIEHE -

AEEERERREE

AEBEZHELXBIBZREFTER
R

For the nine For the

months ended year ended

30 September 31 December

2005 2004

B=E BHE

—EBAHF —ZEEMEF

A +=A

=t+AHi =t+—HIL

(In HK$'000) (ABEEF T REL) @A FE
Turnover =2

Hong Kong BB 12,603 82,119

China A 173,117 465,277

185,720 547,396

Turnover is allocated based on the location of
customers.
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5 Segment information (continued) 5 pEHER (E)
As at As at
30 September 31 December
2005 2004
R-ZZERE R-ZEZTWMF
(In HK$'000) (ABEFTREM) A= ER el g
Total assets wEE
Hong Kong BB 149,468 157,242
China ey 2,604,192 1,327,743
2,753,660 1,484,985
Total assets are allocated based on the location of BMEEREEFMEWE DR -
assets.
For the nine For the
months ended year ended
30 September 31 December
2005 2004
BZE HE
—EERF —ETNF
hA +=A
=t+HL =t—Hlt
(In HK$'000) (LAB® T TREMN) @A FE
Capital expenditure EREX
Hong Kong BB 430 4
China H 41,813 155,385
42,243 155,389
Capital expenditure is allocated based on the location BRARATIREEMTHE DR -
of assets.
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6 Provisions written back/(made) 6 BE (EH) BE
For the nine For the
months ended year ended
30 September 31 December
2005 2004
BE H=E
—EERF —ZTT e
hA +=A
=+H8L =+—HI
(In HK$'000) (ABEFTREM) HE A FE

Provisions written back/(made) in LA TIE B £ @

relation to: (fELH) B -
Impairment of a jointly — [ R

controlled entity BB - (4,077)
Construction project BEETR 34,587 —
Consideration receivable FEW R AE 762 (1,015)
Property, plant and equipment #1% - H&E M & & (504) (14)
Inventories FE - 18
Doubtful debts *BR (493) (2,988)
Contractual claim ERRE 8,000 =

42,352 (8,076)
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7 Other income/expenses, net 4 Eﬂﬂqﬁlk/ﬁﬁ X 38
The other income/expenses, net in the income RBERZEMBMKRA A FER
statement include: 1
For the nine For the
months ended year ended
30 September 31 December
2005 2004
BZE HE
3 5 —TTMF
A +=—A
=t+HI =+—H8Lt
(In HK$'000) (LAY F T A M) hEA FE
Excess of fair value of net assets BB FEE
acquired over the cost of N ERE
acquisition of interests in BB AN Fl A =
subsidiaries AR 2 BEE 49,519 -
Changes in fair value of investment &YW EATE
properties 2 EE) - 43,314
Others HA - (774)
49,519 42,540
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8

Expenses by nature

Expenses included in direct operating expenses and

8 BMHEI2HAX

BEERRERXRITRAXMEIEZH

administrative expenses are analysed as follows: XOMWT
For the nine For the
months ended year ended
30 September 31 December
2005 2004
BZE HE
—EERE —ETME
hA +=A
=t+HL =t+t—HI1
(In HK$'000) (AABETTREAM) @A FE
Depreciation, amortization and e BiHK
impairment expenses BB R 2 3,200 4,544
Less: amounts capitalized to B BIERAERERE
properties held for development RgzWEE
K2 B - (196)
Less: amounts capitalized to W BEERAPYE
properties under development BR 7 H (89) (1,289)
3,111 3,059
Direct outgoings arising from HRESWAZ
investment properties that WEYEFMES
generate rental income LEERLEERE 7,820 3,213
Operating lease rentals in TH REF 2
respect of land and buildings KEREY 922 1,371
Staff costs (including directors’ BT A
remuneration) (BREEEMS) 17,579 25,868
Retirement benefit costs RRAR F A 244 228
Share-based compensation %5 & 746 307
Auditors’ remuneration = 2T B & 1,767 1,322
Net foreign exchange gains HNIE Wt 55 5 B8 (308) (415)
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9 Finance costs 9 &R
For the nine For the
months ended year ended
30 September 31 December
2005 2004
BZE #H=
—EERE —ETMEF
A T=E
= =l EIRIE =l — (==
(In HK$'000) (AB® T TRERMN) @ A FE
Interest on bank borrowings ERAFAZIEE L
wholly repayable within five years RITERF R 17,806 25,467
Other borrowing costs H fh B A 1,472 4,537
Total borrowing costs incurred EAXZERKAERE 19,278 30,004
Less: amounts capitalized to W BIERBERER
properties held for development RzzMEER
2 B (992) (4,673)
Less: amounts capitalized to B BIEERBYE
properties under development BEARZ 8ER - (9,260)
Total borrowing costs capitalized BIEEAZER
X 7R 485 (992) (13,933)
18,286 16,071
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10 Income tax expense 10 FTBHEX
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made FR P 7N &= B 74 B 1A I 4 FE SR B s A
as the Group has no assessable profit for the period WA BB BFNERRERER (2T
(2004: Nil). Taxation on overseas profits has been TPOF - ) o FINERF ZFIBE B
calculated on the estimated assessable profit for the A ETERTR T - BAEELE
period at the rates of taxation prevailing in the EBFREBR CBITRETE o

countries in which the Group operates.

The amount of taxation (charged)/credited to the (B E) FTALZAEKRERZHE
consolidated income statement represents:

For the nine For the

months ended year ended

30 September 31 December

2005 2004

Bz HZE

—ZEEBRHF T e

A +=ZA

=t+HL =+—HI

(In HK$'000) (ABEF T REL) @A FE

Current income tax — BV EA PR 15 7%

overseas taxation —BINEIIE (2,009) (1,986)
Deferred income tax IR IE AT 15 7% 550 (3,494)
(1,459) (5,480)
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10 Income tax expense (continued) 10 PR HFE X ()
The tax on the Group's profit before tax differs from N B R TR & A 2 AR S A B
the theoretical amount that would arise using the FRBEAREE AR 2
weighted average tax rate applicable to profits of the HAMEGTERE 2R R

consolidated companies as follows:

For the nine For the
months ended year ended
30 September 31 December
2005 2004
BZE H=E
—EBAHF —ZTEMEF
A +=A
=+AHik =t+—RIk
(In HK$'000) (AB¥F T REA) 8 A FE
Profit before income tax B P45 4 A A 99,708 31,340
Calculated at taxation rate LA17.5%F E5t &
at 17.5% (2004: 17.5%) (ZZTWEF -
17.5%) 17,449 5,484
Effect of different taxation rate H At B 2R S [R] A 2
in other countries TE 608 2,925
Income not subject to tax BIERB 2 A (16,568) (10,075)
Expenses not deductible for IE kT
tax purposes Z X 4,485 2,676
Utilisation of previously A BARER
unrecognized tax losses 15t I8 &5 18 (7,355) (4,980)
Tax losses for which no deferred REBRELEME
income tax asset was recognized MEE 2 MIBEE 2,840 9,450
Tax expense i 5k B 2 1,459 5,480
11 Retirement benefit costs 11 B K& R B 2
Forfeited contributions totalling HK$165,000 (31 Bz R G £ % 165,000
December 2004: HK$1,091,000) were utilised during (ZZEZTMF+_A=+—8 : &%
the period to reduce contributions. 1,091,0007T) E 7 Hi ;A & A 2RO MK it
3R e
Contributions totalling HK$98,000 (31 December HARFHEESNTFES ZERTBES
2004: HK$122,000) were payable to the fund at the 75 #98,000t (ZETWME+=H =
period end and are included in creditors and accruals. +—H : B¥122,0007T) @ X HIRFE

MRRR R BT RRIAA -
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12 Directors’ and senior management 12 EERGREEBAEZHE
emoluments
(a) Directors’ and senior management’s (a) EEREAREEAEBCZHE
emoluments
The remuneration of each director for the nine HE_ZZTHFNA=THIEI
months period ended 30 September 2005 is set EABESESE M0 T:
out below:
Salary, Employer's
allowances, contribution
benefits  Share-based Discretionary to pension
Fees in kind compensation bonuses scheme Total
e BER RiKEE
Name of director ESpg ne ENFE RAME METL <EBFHF &
Mr. Ang Ah Lay HEEEL - 1,959 161 - 78 2,198
Dr. Han Cheng Fong BRERT 260 = 97 = - 357
Mr. Alan Howard Smith, J.P. Alan Howard 160 - 65 - - 225
Smith7t &
ATat
Mr. Kwong Che Keung, Gordon ~ BSi&s8 2t & 160 - 65 - - 25
Mr. Goh Yong Chian, Patrick REMEHE 160 - 44 - - 204
Ms. Chong Siak Ching REFZL 120 - 65 - - 185
Mr. Hui Chiu Chung, J.P. FREEE 120 - - - - 120
AF#L
Mr. Lew Syn Pau AfEREE 103 - 65 - - 168
Ms. Wang Poey Foon, Angela FEFLT 80 - 65 - - 145
Mr. Goh Kok Huat REFTE 37 - - - - 37
The remuneration of each director for the HE_ZETHWNF+-_H=+—8H
year ended 31 December 2004 is set out EFEEEE 20T
below:
Salary, Employer’'s
allowances, contribution
benefits ~ Share-based  Discretionary  to pension
Fees in kind  compensation bonuses scheme  Total
e 2R RReaE
Name of director ESNA ik B & 17 B & MERL <EEHRR A
Mr. Ang Ah Lay HEEEE - 2,401 58 217 104 2,780
Dr. Han Cheng Fong HHgET 260 = 35 = - 29
Mr. Alan Howard Smith, J.P. Alan Howard 160 - 23 - - 183
Smith%t 4 -
AT#t
Mr. Kwong Che Keung, Gordon B i&s8 %t & 160 - 23 - - 183
Mr. Goh Yong Chian, Patrick REMEE 92 = = = = 9
Ms. Chong Siak Ching REERT 120 - 23 - -8
Mr Hui Chiu Chung, J.P. ATRAELA 5 - - - - 5
AT#t
Mr. Lew Syn Pau AR EE 140 - 23 - - 163
Ms. Wang Poey Foon, Angela FEALT 120 - 23 - - 143
Mr. Lai Seck Khui ReHBEE 41 - - - - M
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12 Directors’ and senior management 12 EEREREBEAEBZHE

emoluments (continued) (&)

(b) Five highest paid individuals (continued) (b) EBEERBEFMAL
The profit individuals whose emoluments were NERAEB AR E &= A
the highest in the Group for the period include TEE—Z(ZETWFE : —8)
one (2004: one) director whose emoluments are EE HMeEHR EXDM -
reflected in the analysis presented above. The HpAME (ZETWEF : M%) &
emoluments payable to the remaining four (2004: SHMATZME AT -

four) individuals during the period are as follows:

For the nine For the
months ended year ended
30 September 31 December
2005 2004
BZE HE
—ERRF —_TTmE
A +=A
=t+HL =t—HI1t
(In HK$'000) (AE® T T REA) @ A FE
Salaries, allowances, and e =FMK
benefits in kind B R 3,216 4,551
Share-based compensation A= 10 B & 95 37
Contributions to retirement RKAEF
benefit schemes 5T 814 137 126
3,448 4,714
The emoluments fell within the following bands: B 2 AR
Number of individuals
ESAH
2005 2004
—EERE —TENMEF
Emolument bands B < 48 5l
Nil — HK$1,000,000 L — B #1,000,0007T 3 1
HK$1,000,001 — HK$ 1,500,000 75 #1,000,001 7T —
75 #51,500,0007T 1 2
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 75 #£1,500,001 7T —
7% #2,000,0007T - 1
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13 Loss attributable to shareholders of the 13 ARRIRRELEIE
Company
The loss attributable to shareholders of the STARR BB EmE 2 ANA B REE
Company is dealt with in the financial statements 1 E5 18 7578 ¥ 3,665,000 (Z T T
of the Company to the extent of HK$3,665,000 & B ¥1,174,0007T)

(2004: HK$1,174,000).

14 Earnings per share 14 SRER
Basic =8
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing BRRERRR TR A A 7R E (L &
the profit attributable to shareholders of the R AR FREEHITE AR INE
Company by the weighted average number of BT o

ordinary shares in issue during the period/year.

For the nine For the
months ended year ended
30 September 31 December
2005 2004
BZE HE
—EBRHF —TT e
A +=—A
=t+HL =+—HIE
(In HK$'000) (ABEFTREM) @A FE
Profit attributable to shareholders N AR R G v A
of the Company (HK$'000) (BT T 93,556 14,478
Weighted average number of B 31T & @ AR N ke
ordinary shares in issue 5 2,893,072,332 2,836,188,944
Basic earnings per share BRERRZF
(HK cents) &AL 3.23 0.51
Diluted g
Diluted earnings per share has not been shown as AR EEEET LB WEET
there was no dilutive potential ordinary shares. FREERF -
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15 Property, plant and equipment 15 Y% - BERRHE
Buildings in
China under Properties
medium-term Motor Office Furniture Leasehold held for
lease vehicles equipment  and fixtures improvements  development Total
R E#T KEERR
(In HK$'000) (NBBTTARENL)  hHEAZET AE HAZRE BARXE  BRNEEE Rzh% ag
At 1 January 2004 R-2EMEF-A-A
Cost A 16,155 3,066 6,827 1,589 6,053 184,960 218,650
Accumulated depreciation 2RiE (5,791) (1,677) (4,966) (849) (3,399) - (16,682)
Net book amount REFE 10,364 1,389 1,861 740 2,654 184,960 201,968
Year ended HEZ-ZEME+ZA
31 December 2004 St-BLEE
Opening net book amount ~ HAIRAFE 10,364 1,389 1,861 740 2,654 184,960 201,968
Exchange differences EXZS 25 6 6 4 2 1,110 1,153
Additions #R = 244 116 16 - 155,013 155,389
Provision made BE - - (14) - - - (14)
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAR - (275) (277) (262) (399) - (1.213)
Disposals HE - (60) - (29) - = 88)
Transfer to investment property B & &M% - - - - - (337,077) (337,077)
Depreciation nE (1,743) (468) (938) (235) (1,116) = (4,500)
Closing net book amount BRRE A 8,646 836 754 235 1,141 4,006 15,618
At 31 December 2004 R-ZEME
TZA=1-H
Cost RA 16,198 2,450 5,285 1,089 4,390 4,006 33,418
Accumulated depreciation 2RE (7,552) (1,614) (4,531) (854) (3,249) - (17,800)
Net book amount REFE 8,646 836 754 235 114 4,006 15,618
Period ended HEZ-%%1f%
30 September 2005 ARETHLEHRA
Opening net book amount BNREFE 8,646 836 754 235 1,141 4,006 15,618
Exchange differences EREE 55 13 10 3 2 82 165
Acquisition of subsidiary WENBAR
(Note 36) (HizE36) - - 91 48 - - 139
Additions EH = 292 1,940 m - 39,701 42,104
Provision (made)fwritten back  (fElt) /B E& %A (504) - = = - 9,592 9,088
Disposals if-3 (951) (30) (57) - - - (1,038)
Depreciation e (1324) (209) (479) (89) (361) - (2,462)
Closing net book amount BREEFE 5,922 902 2,259 368 782 53,381 63,614
At 30 September 2005 R-551%
AB=1A
Cost A 13,107 2,480 6,975 1,318 4392 53,381 81,653
Accumulated depreciation 2ENE (7,185) (1,578) (4,716) (950) (3,610) = (18,039)
Net book amount FETE 5922 902 2,259 368 782 53,381 63,614
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16 Investment properties 16 REWXE
As at As at
30 September 31 December
2005 2004
R=-BZ2EREF R-_ZTOEF
(In HK$'000) (AEETTRENMN) hRA=+B +-ZA=+—H
Beginning of the period/year B, F 9] 492,471 120,000
Transfer from properties under 1 79 3% FR ) 35 B
development - 337,077
Exchange differences bE 5 =58 6,762 =
Fair value gains (including in AN ERKE (BHFER
other gains — net) Hiplgzs —FE) - 35,394
End of the period/year HF R 499,233 492,471
The investment properties were revalued at 30 HENER _ZETRFNA=+THH
September 2005 by independent, professionally BUBXEARGEMBERITHET
qualified valuers DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited. Bl o MENUMBEMERT — @SR
Valuations were based on current prices in an active MinzHEBRER -

market for all properties.

The Group’s interests in investment properties at their REBRIREMSE 2 ERRARTF
net book values are analysed as follows: BEATAT :

As at As at

30 September 31 December

2005 2004

R-ZEZERE R-ZZTTWMHF

(In HK$'000) (BT TRELL) A=+ +=ZA=+—H

Outside Hong Kong under R EBEBFIN -
medium-term lease AT HALD 499,233 492,471
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17 Land use rights 17 T HhfE AR
The Group's interests in land use rights represent REBER T AR ERETREME
prepaid operating lease payments and their net book gHAzEe  EREAESFE> A
value are analysed as follows: I8
As at As at
30 September 31 December
2005 2004
R-BZEHEF RZTTOEF
(In HK$'000) (ABEE T TREL) AR TE i =7 =Fish =
Outside Hong Kong, held on: R B BIHEIN -
BIEATHOFE :
Leases of between 10 to 50 years +TEERTEZHEY 40,573 16,316
Bank borrowings are secured on land use rights with #R1TE A BREE % % 40,573,000
the carrying amount of HK$40,573,000 (2004: (ZZZM%F : %%16,316,0007T) 2
HK$16,316,000). & R REE AR o
As at As at
30 September 31 December
2005 2004
R-ZEZREF RZZTETWMFE
(In HK$'000) (AAB¥ T T AREN) hB=+H +ZA=+—H
Opening 147 16,316 16,360
Amortisation of prepaid operating  TE T 4¢ ‘& F8 %)
lease payment 10 5 # 8 (738) (44)
Provision written back 1 [ # 24,995 =
40,573 16,316
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18 Properties held for sale 18 IFHEW
At 30 September 2005, the carrying amount of REZZTEZRFNLA=1TH  TEEHF
properties held for sale of the Group that are carried EEE 2 M E AR # IR FEF R 2K
at net realisable value amounted to HK$211,047,000 E{EAB 211,047,000 0(Z = =M
(2004: HK$310,994,000) & : 7 #310,994,0007T) °
19 Properties under development 19 BRI
As at As at
30 September 31 December
2005 2004
R=-ZEZ2HF RKR_ZTTWHF
(In HK$'000) (ABEFTREM) AA=Z+B +-A=+—H
Land use rights (Note) = b {5 PR (BT &) 754,455 =
Development costs f B B X 520,021 19,374
1,274,476 19,374
Note: Bk -
The Group’s interests in land use rights represent prepaid AEERTHERAE 2 ERERALENR
operating lease payments. All land use rights are situated HzMEe - AT MERAEASUREES
outside Hong Kong and held on leases of over 50 years. SNBFTHE A B B 504 -
Included in properties under development is land use T (FRAEeEEXRERYERT -
rights and the movement is as follows: HEBMT :
As at As at
30 September 31 December
2005 2004
R-ZEZ2RF RKR_ZTTWHF
(In HK$'000) (ABETFTTREM) AA=+B +-A=+—H
Balance at beginning of the B FYEEE
period/year - =
Acquisition of subsidiaries 1 B Y /28 2 &) 754,455 =
Balance at end of the period/year B FRBE 754,455 =
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20 Intangible assets 20 B EE

Negative goodwill
(In HK$'000) (AB¥F T RBEA) =k
At 1 January 2004 R-—ZZWNFE—HF—H
Cost X 7S (1,981)
Realisation ) 431
Net book amount BREFE (1,550)
Year ended 31 December 2004 BE-_ZZNF+-A=+—-HLFE
Opening net book amount EX R FE (1,550)
Realisation FIR 517
Closing net book amount BAR AR EDF A (1,033)
At 31 December 2004 R-ZZEWFE+-A=+—H
Cost X 7S (1,981)
Realisation ) 948
Net book amount BREFE (1,033)
Period ended 30 September 2005 BE-_ZZRAFhA=1THLHH
Opening net book amount B¥ R FE (1,033)
Derecognition T TFHER 1,033
Closing net book amount BAR AR EDF (A =
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21 Investments in subsidiaries

n

21 REMB AR ZKRE

Company
KA T

As at As at
30 September 31 December
2005 2004
R-ZEZERE RZZZZTWEF
(In HK$'000) (ABHE T T BB hBA=+H +=-A=+—8H
Amounts due from subsidiaries A NEENGIE ] 3,329,871 2,980,935
Less: provision o B (2,180,655) (2,180,655)
1,149,216 800,280
Amounts due to subsidiaries VR ENGIE @] (116,040) (116,178)
1,033,176 684,102

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at n

30 September 2005:

/A

Al

Proportion of
nominal value

TETRFNA=THZEENE
ZERERDMT :

of issued
ordinary
Particulars of issued share capital  share capital/
ERTREER registered
Number of Par value  capital held
Name of subsidiaries ordinary shares per share by the Group Principal activities
rEERER
BRTEER
BRA/EM
WELRER EERRE BEREE HAEELH FEXK
Directly held by the Company:
EEMARARE
Vision Century Secretaries Limited 2 HK$ 1 100%  Secretarial and
B WEERAA BB nominee services
WERKAARS
Indirectly held by the Company:
HERALDARE :
Beijing Gang Lu Real Estate - US$11,200,000 100%  Property development

Development Co., Ltd.® ® tid

Lt EAREEREEARA IO
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Proportion of
nominal value

21 REMB R RIZ KR E (&)

of issued
ordinary
Particulars of issued share capital  share capital/
ERTREER registered
Number of Par value  capital held
Name of subsidiaries ordinary shares per share by the Group Principal activities
rEEfER
BRTEER
R&
WEARER EERREY SREE HAEELH FEXH
Beijing Vision Century Property — US$150,000 100%  Property management
Management Co. Ltd.® (registered capital) in China
TREFELENEERFRRA IO 150,000% 1. hEYEER
(EMER)
Bestday Assets Limited"” 1 US$1 100% Investment holding
1%7T REZER
Best Keeping Resources Limited 2 HK$1 100%  Property and golf club
BEERBBAA BEIT membership holding
REMER
ERAYees
Glory Honour Development Limited 10,000 HK$1 100%  Property development
BREREFERAR BEAT MEERE
Great Project Property Limited 100 HK$ 1 100% Investment holding
ARNERERAA REAER
Limbo Enterprises Limited® 1 Us$1 100%  Property development
(E NEER
Million Wealth Development Limited 2 HK$1 100%  Property development
BUHERARAA BB MEER
Prosper Advance Investments Limited 2 HK$1 100%  Property development
ERREARAT BEIT NERRE
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Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

Proportion of
nominal value

21 RB AR 2 RE (&)

of issued
ordinary
Particulars of issued share capital  share capital/
ERTREER registered
Number of Par value  capital held
Name of subsidiaries ordinary shares per share by the Group Principal activities
AEEMRE
BRTEER
RA& /R
WELRER EERRY BEREE HAEELH FEXK
Readworld.com Corporation 1,000,000 USs$0.1 97.77%  Investment holding
0.1%7 REER
ReadWorld.com Limited 2 HK$1 100%  Club membership
"EHRRBERA A BEIT holding
REEMERE
Surpreme Asia Investments Limited 10,000 US$10,000 54.78%  Investment holding
10,000% 7T REEK
Shanghai Zhong Jun Real Estate RMB200,000,000 52.04%  Property development
Development Co Ltd® v (registered capital) in China
LEmERRERBERR LD RO A& #200,000,0007T REMEERE
(GEMEXK)
Tenways Investments Limited 1 US$1 100% Investment holding
E REER
Victory Great Investment Limited 2 HK$1 100%  Property development
HAFRERRRA BEIT NERRE
Vision Business Park (TH) Limited 1 US$1 100%  Investment holding
(E REAER
Vision Business Park Marketing 1 US$1 100%  Marketing services
Services Ltd" (EV M5 1 B AR 7%
BE TSR ERB AR A RO
Vision Century Administration Limited 500,000 HK$1 100%  Management
BEIT consultancy services
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21 Investments in subsidiaries (continued) 21 RMIB AR ZRE (8)

Proportion of
nominal value

of issued
ordinary
Particulars of issued share capital  share capital/
ERTREER registered
Number of Par value  capital held
Name of subsidiaries ordinary shares per share by the Group Principal activities
rEEREER
BRTEER
BRA& /R
WELRER EERRY BEREE HAEELH FEXK
Vision Century Capital Limited 2 HK$1 100%  Group financing
BHmEERDA BB SERE
Vision Century Estate Agents Limited 2 HK$1 100%  Real estate agency
BMMEREERAA BB BHELL
Vision Century Investments (Dalian) 2 HK$1 100% Investment holding
Limited BEAT REER
BHMRE (KE)BERAA
Vision Century Investments Co. Ltd.0 @ - US$250,000 100%  Business consulting
Bt R RELD (RI) BERAF W (registered capital) services
250,000 7T BEBER RS
(EMER)
Vision Century Property Consultancy 1 US$1 100%  Property consultancy
Services Ltd® E services
MEER R
Vision Century Property Management 2 HK$1 100%  Property management
Limited BEAT MEER

BHMEERARAA
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21 RB AR 2 RE (&)

21 Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

Proportion of
nominal value

of issued
ordinary
Particulars of issued share capital  share capital/
ERTREER registered
Number of Par value  capital held
Name of subsidiaries ordinary shares per share by the Group Principal activities
AEEMRE
BRTEER
RA& /R
WELRER EERRY BEREE HAEELH FEXK
Vision Century Real Estate = US$10,000,000 100%  Property development
Development (Dalian) Co. Ltd.®® (registered capital) in China
BAERERE (KE)BRAAOWO 10,000,000% 7 hENERER
(G & &)
Vision Huaging (Beijing) Development - RMB130,000,000 60%  Business park
Co. Ltd.0 @t (registered capital) development in
BHER (L) EXRRERAFOWO AR #130,000,0007T China
(A& XK) hEEHEEERE
Vision (Shenzhen) Business Park - RMB100,000,000 95%  Business park
Co., Ltd. 0 ) (registered capital) development in
AN E R REFRAF W0 AR #100,000,0007T China
(7 & &) hEREREEERE
Vision Century PRC Investments Limited 2 HK$1 100%  Property holding
AP ERERRAA BEIT REM*
Vision Property Management (Dalian) - US$65,000 100%  Property management
Co. Ltd.0 W (registered capital) in China
BAMYEER (KE)ARRAAIOO 65,000 7 hEYEER
(G & &)
Wide Best Development Limited 2 HK$1 100%  Property development
BEERBERADA BEIT NEEE
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21 Investments in subsidiaries (continued) 21 REMB R RIZ KR E (&)
Notes: Hf 3
() Registered and with place of business in China () RPBEEMEEE
(i)  Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (i) REBREXHESTMAKL
(iii) Incorporated in the Cayman Islands (i) RESHSEMKZ
(iv) Not audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers (iv) FERZEEFKBSAEHEAMEZ
(v)  Wholly foreign-owned enterprises (v) NEBELZE
(vi) Sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprise (i) FINEEEERZE
(vii) Sino-foreign cooperative joint venture enterprise (vi) RINEBIEEE
22 Interests in associated companies 22 BE N TR
As at As at
30 September 31 December
2005 2004
R-ZB2RFE RIZZTWEF
(In HK$'000) (AT TREA) hRA=+H +tZH=+—8H
Beginning of the period/year B F ) 193 1,152
Share of results of associated
companies EAEEE R R XA
— (Loss)/profit before taxation —BBAT (E51E) % A (20) 581
173 1,733
Decrease in amounts due from JE W B i R B kIR R A
associated companies - (1,540)
End of the period/year B F R 173 193
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23 Investments in equity securities 23 RAEBHFKRE
Group Company
r&E YN

As at As at As at As at
30 September 31 December 30 September 31 December
2005 2004 2005 2004
R-ZTLF e a3 R-ZZZRF R-ZTTMF
(In HK$'000) (WB%TrREML) NA=tH +TZA=T—H AA=+B  +ZA=+—H

Non-trading securities, *EE#%
7\

at fair value BATE
Unlisted i} - 16,387 - 6,465
Reclassified as available-for-sale financial assets in BEBBETEANENRE S/ I
2005 in accordance with HKAS 32 - Financial EL: ﬁﬁ%&iﬁ”ﬁﬁﬁé—v S R E B
Instruments: Disclosures and Presentation (Please refer SEAMNEESMEE (F2HTX
to note 24 below). Bt 5E24) °
24 Available-for-sale financial assets 24 JHESHMEE
Group Company
AEE N
As at As at As at As at
30 September 31 December 30 September 31 December
2005 2004 2005 2004
R-ZZRE RZEZTME R-ZZHE RZZEWE
(In HK$'000) (L% FTragN) HRA=+E +ZA=+-H AB=+R  +ZA=+-H

At 1 January and RZETHE
30 September 2005 —HA—HE

“TTR4E
NA=+H 16,387 - 6,465 -
Less: non-current
portion B ERE O (16,387) = (6,465) =
Current portion mEB M - - - =
There were no disposals or impairment provisions on R-ZEZRF  AHESHMEETE
available-for-sale financial assets in 2005. HE SR ERE -
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"

Available-for-sale financial assets
(continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets include the
following:

24 ATHEEMEE (&)

AHESREERRE FNIRA :

Group Company
r&E AN

As at As at As at As at
30 September 31 December 30 September 31 December
2005 2004 2005 2004
R-ZEERLF i e R-ZZRF RZZEZWE
(In HK$'000) (WB%TFrAR®EM) HAA=tH +TZA=1+—H AA=+R  +ZA=+—H
Unlisted securities ELEmESR 16,387 - 6,465 =

Reclassified from investments in equity securities in
2005 in accordance with HKAS 32 - Financial
Instruments: Disclosures and Presentation (Please refer
to note 23 above).

Debtors, deposits and prepayments

BREESSTENENRRE -SRI
B BREREIMR=ZEZTRFHRK
REHEEENDE (FL2HLEXW
5¥23) o

25 BWHRRA - BERBENKE

Group Company
S 3L YN
As at As at As at As at
30 September 31 December 30 September 31 December
2005 2004 2005 2004
R-ZZRE RZZEZMF R=-ZZHF RZZZME
(In HK$'000) (BT rTABEM) HAA=tH +ZA=+—H AB=E+H  +ZA=t+—H
Trade receivables 2 5 EWFIE 6,469 14,319 - =
Less: provision for & : ERFHIEZ
impairment of AR
receivables (224) (500) - -
Trade receivables E L LE
- net (Note a) 2 AUED) 6,245 13,819 - -
Deposits ®e 315,189 310,091 - -
Prepayments BN HIE 28,279 18,206 119 591
Others Hit 14,017 12,786 190 52
363,730 354,902 309 643
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25 Debtors, deposits and prepayments 25 EWERA » e RFBELRE

(continued) (&)

(a) Included in debtors, deposits and prepayments HAEIMEZ - e RTBRZREZIAE
are trade receivables and its ageing analysis is as BEAEWEBZSEZR  EE®BSTW
follows: T

Group Company
AEE N
As at As at As at As at
30 September 31 December 30 September 31 December
2005 2004 2005 2004
R-EZRF RZZTTMF R-ZZRF RZTEMF
(In HK$'000) (L\B®TrAR®EM) AA=+H F+ZA=1+—H AB=E+H  +ZA=+—H
Within 3 months = {& A LA A 6,245 13,819 - -
Trade receivables represent considerations in FEMEZE BIRFIEELEMEZRE
respect of sold properties, rental receivables and FEWHEE RIHE S m 2 BYKRIE o
receivables from sales of goods.
Considerations in respect of sold properties are EHEMEZREBEREEHZ 2K
payable by the purchasers pursuant to the terms FHEAXN EHRBESDELR
of the sale and purchase agreements. Rental IR - MEAERKEIRERIA -

receivables are billed in advance and are payable
by tenants upon receipts of billings.
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25 Debtors, deposits and prepayments
(continued)

(b) Included in debtors, deposits and prepayments
are payments for certain lands in China of which
formal land use right certificates have not yet
been obtained by the Group. Pursuant to the
new regulation promulgated by the Beijing Land
Bureau (the “Bureau”) in last year, all the lands
of which land use right certificates have not been
obtained before 31 August 2004 may be put up
for public auctions and the original owner will
be compensated for the payments made.

The Group has certain lands with payments
amounted to approximately HK$314,094,000
(2004: HK$307,885,000) which are now being
reviewed by the Bureau for the application of
land use right certificates. The Group is also
negotiating with the relevant parties on the
settlement of the land payments. Based on the
existing market condition and the progress of
application, in the directors’ opinion, the
outcome of the above event, although uncertain
at present, is unlikely to have a material impact
on the Group’s financial statements for the
period.

26 Bank balances and cash
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25 BB - BE RBANRE
(%)

(b) FFARMER - RE RBEMNKIA

BEPEEFI AR A

B ARBAEBZ EX L EA

& REIERLHWERER (L

WHREEFEMZIER - A

EHAR-ZZENENAAZT—

B RIES L (E R 2 T 3K

SREVMAME  MEEA AR
SREDNZHIBESEE -

NEBHEEBEREHDEL
314,094,000 (ZZZ W 4F : &
#5307,885,00070) 2 &/ T £Hb -
WEALTHBHEZE B LHE
FAEZERZE  AN&EEJEHEGH
BHENBRTHRBEIER ©
BRIBREMAKAFREE  £F
RE - BEBANMETEER
= BLElEIR 2 &R T AR &L
HAEEBAN 2 B ERRIEKE

S/ 0
REE -

26 |ITHEBRAE

Group Company
XEH YN
As at As at As at As at
30 September 31 December 30 September 31 December
2005 2004 2005 2004
R-ZEZRLF RZZTMEF R-ZBLF RZZTMEF
(In HK$'000) (W% TrAR®EM) HAA=tH +TZA=1+—H AA=+R  +ZA=+—H
Cash at bank
and in hand RORFERE 188,769 169,597 28,812 32,190
Short-term
bank deposits RERITE N 94,184 85,304 72,517 85,304
282,953 254,901 101,329 117,494

The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits
was 3.3% (2004: 0.2%); these deposits have an
average maturity of 20 days.

HHRITERZEBRAEE33% (=
TEIF : 02%) * ZEFRFHH
R A20K °
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27 Share capital 27 BB A
a. Authorised and issued capital a. EERBBITRAE
As at As at
30 September 31 December
2005 2004
R-BEHFE R-TEMF
(In HK$'000) (AB T TREMN) hRB=+H +tZA=+—H
Authorised: ETERA
10,000,000,000 ordinary shares 10,000,000,000/% & &
of HK10 cents each HE{EB B 100l 2 Ik 1,000,000 1,000,000
Number of
shares (In HK$'000)
(LA H

K10 2 B FTrRREM)

Issued and fully paid: EETRHBRE
Ordinary shares of BREEEE
HK10 cents each 1011l 2 & i i
At 1 January and RZZEZTMEF-—HA—ABRK
31 December 2004 —TEMFE+-_A=+—HB 2,836,188,944 283,619
Issue of shares BT D 1,725,462,776 172,546
At 30 September 2005 R=Z2ZRAFHAA=TH 4,561,651,720 456,165
The Group issued 1,725,462,776 shares on 22 AEBR -_ZEZTRFNALA -+
September 2005 (38% of the total ordinary share H 171,725,462, 776 & 15 (1&
capital issued) to CPL (China) Pte Ltd (“CPL BETERIRKALEE Z38%)
China") as part of the purchase consideration T CPL (China) Pte Ltd ([CPL
for 54.78% of the entire share capital of SAI Chinal) * fEA B ASAIZ PR A
and the debt owing by SAI to CPL China. The 2.54.78% M SAI%E R CPL Chinaf&
ordinary shares issued have the same rights as B2BHWERE - ULBETZ
the other shares in issue. The fair value of the TR A A E A BT () A8
shares issued at the date of acquisition amounted RzEF - RIEEE BT 2K
to HK$327,838,000 (HK$0.19 per share). fn 2 V1B %% % 327,838,000

T (B B#0.197T) °
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27 Share capital (continued)

(b) Share option schemes

The share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) became effective on 20 May 2003 and,
unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will
remain in force for 10 years from that date. The
maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted must not exceed 10%
of the issued share capital of the Company as at
the date of adoption of the Share Option
Scheme. The offer of a grant may be accepted
upon payment of a nominal consideration of
HK$1 per acceptance. The exercise period of the
share options granted is determinable by the
Board, and commences on a specified date and
ends on a date which is not later than 10 years
from the date of grant of the share options. The
exercise price will be determined by the Board,
but shall not be less than the highest of (i) the
closing prices of the Company’s shares as stated
in the daily quotation sheet of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on the date of grant, which must be
a trading day; (ii) the average closing prices of
the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of
grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the
Company's share.

Annual Report 2005 — EZ H F F3{

27 B (48)

(b) R &

AR & ([RAERE]) R =
TE=FRA-tHEBEN K
FERTTEEHIER] - BT S
BEZBAETFRABER - AR
HezRRkEZEBRNEE LR
NGB IB AN 2 B BR 40 58 B R R
EEADBRITRAZI0% - Bz
EEANEERBBERAINRE
NEREEK 1T  REZRK
BZTENHESSETE  AE
TEHHARBERILZATTEG
KRR EE AR+ F - 2)
BZTEEHESEETE @ Hx
ERTFERTIEERZES
F(WREBREER (WARR
ZE)ARRBBEOREEBER
SRARRNE ([BRMA])EHZ
BRI ZHHIE - (NBER
HRBREZBEHIAARS AR
REIBMRERAEH 2 BRE
oIz I (E ¢ k(i) AN R A
Befn < E{E e
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27 Share capital (continued) 27 B (£8)
(b) Share option schemes (continued) (b) FEBRESE (E)
Movements in the number of share options MARITERBRESE REE B
outstanding and their related weighted average BN ITEE 2 E T

exercise prices are as follows:

30 September 2005 31 December 2004
ZE22AFAAZTH —EEME+-_A=+—H
Average Average
exercise Number exercise Number
price in HK$ of share  price in HK$ of share
per share options per share options
SRTH SRTFH
THEE 1THEfE
() AREHE () R EH A
At beginning of the R, &1
period/year 0.1689 25,340,000 0.1706 20,065,000
Granted & i - - 0.1670 12,000,000
Lapsed i 0.1706 (740,000) 0.1706 (6,725,000)
At end of the RE/FER
period/year 0.1688 24,600,000 0.1689 25,340,000
Out of the 24,600,000 outstanding options (31 1£24,600,00017 # R 1T 2 R
December 2004: 25,340,000 options), 3,150,000 B(ZETEME+ A =1 —
options (31 December 2004: 3,335,000) were H : 25,340,000 R ML AE) & >
exercisable. 3,150,000 R R E (ZZT W F

+ZA=+—8 : 3,335,000 R
RRHE) AT EATEE -

132



"

27 Share capital (continued)
(b) Share option schemes (continued)
Share options outstanding at the end of the

period have the following expiry date and
exercise prices:
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27 B (48)

(b)

AR ESTE (&

REIR M R 2 BIAE 2 B H
ARITEEDT :

Number of share options

RREEE

Exercise 30 September 31 December

Date of grant Exercise period price 2005 2004
HK$

—EERHF —EENEF

£ B TEH TEE hA=+B+=H=+—8
75

31/12/2003 31/12/2004-30/12/2013 0.1706 12,600,000 13,340,000

(Note i) (Pt &)
31/12/2004 31/12/2005-30/12/2014 0.1670 12,000,000 12,000,000

(Note ii) (Kt =Eii)

24,600,000 25,340,000
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27 Share capital (continued)

(b) Share option schemes (continued)

134

Notes:

()

(if)

The vesting period of the share options is in the
following manner:

27 B (&)
(b) BB (E)
B

() REEZEBHET :

Percentage of
shares over
which a share

option is

exercisable

Vesting Schedule BR 134 7T 47 &€

55 B B & AREZEI L

Before the first anniversary of the date of grant BH BBz —AFR Nil %
On or after the first but before the BEBHz —AEFsk 2’

second anniversary of the date of grant 1B /3 B 4 Al 25%
On or after the second but before the BEBHzMAEFSK &

third anniversary of the date of grant B=EF A 25%
On or after the third but before the BHEBHzZ=AFk2%

fourth anniversary of the date of grant 18 79 /& £ A 25%
On or after the fourth anniversary of the date BHEBEZMEFSK %

of grant 25%

In relation to the share options, if the eligible
participant, during any of the periods specified
above, exercises that share options for such
number of shares which, in aggregate, represents
less than the number of shares for which the
eligible participant may exercise in respect of such
period, the balance of the shares comprised in
that share option for which the eligible participant
could have exercised (but did not exercise) in
that period shall be carried forward and added
to the number of shares which the eligible
participant may exercise in the next succeeding
period or periods.

The vesting period of the share options is in the
following manner:

PR AEMm S - e ER2E
FEW LR AR5 MR 1T 08
RzERHEA 2 REES K
PRAERSEEEZREA
1T R P S I 2 B D
B AlaER2EENZEME
AATE (BRTTR) 2 %R e
BRZBNBBEEZREEER
MABRERZEERT — (AR
&R ATITERBRE S R 2
RIDEEF -

(i) REEZRBHOT :

Percentage of
shares over
which a share

option is

exercisable

Vesting Schedule BR 134 7T 47 &€

55 B R & AREZED L

Before the first anniversary of the date of grant BBz —AFA Nil %
On or after the first but before the BEBEz —AFsk 2’

second anniversary of the date of grant 18 /3 B 4 Al 40%
On or after the second but before the BEBBHzMAEFSK &

third anniversary of the date of grant B=EF A 30%
On or after the third anniversary of the date BHBHz=AFk 2%

of grant 30%




27 Share capital (continued)

(b) Share option schemes (continued)

In relation to the share options, if the eligible
participant, during the of the periods specified
above, exercises that share options for such
number of shares which, in aggregate, represents
less than the number of shares for which the
eligible participant may exercise in respect of such
period, the balance of the shares comprised in
that share option for which the eligible participant
could have exercised (but did not exercise) in
that period shall be carried forward and added
to the number of shares which the eligible
participant may exercise in the next succeeding
period or periods.

The fair values of options granted in 2003 and 2004
determined using the Binomial Model were as follows:
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27 B (48)

(b) RIS & (8

RREEMS @ WA BERSHE
EW Lt iEE MR TE S Rz
EBRMNBBZREESLIR
BEBSHEEEZRRATE
RIS Rz kin & B Al
BERZEERNZRARATE
(BERTTE) 22 RBEAES 2
Bin 8B ZRBEBERRAG
BR2EERNT —HBE R
ﬂgﬁ%%%%ﬁ&Z%ﬁ%
=] o

R-ZFE=FR-FTTNFELZR
Bz A FETAZREAERN

Date of grant of
share options

RUZREZ B H
31 December 31 December
2003 2004
—EE=F RZZETWEF

t=A=t-B+-A=+-H

Option value RIREEE
Variables: A#EFHEE :
Exercise price T (B

Share price at the grant date

Expected volatility (Note) 8 HA % 18 (B E)
Risk-free interest rate [ B A 2
Expected life of options TEHAR R 2 F

Expected dividend paid out rate 78 8 % BK 1+ R

REL BB ZBRDER

HK$2,212,000 HK$1,256,000

HK$0.1706 HK$0.1670

HK$0.1670 HK$0.1670

80% 80%

3.51% 2.87%

HA 6.25 years &  5.79 years F
Nil #% Nil £

Note:

The volatility measured at the standard deviation of expected
share price return is based on statistical analysis of daily
share prices over the last seven years.

B =E
IR TR EH D (B R B 2 RAEE

(ABELFEBRARNDERZAFONA
HEE)FH o
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28 Reserves 28 fikta
Group rE
Capital Share-based
Share  redemption  Exchange compensation Accumulated
premium  reserves  reserves reserve losses Total
(In HK$000) (BB TLAEN) RtEE EAEEGE  ERGE ROMEHE  2RER e
Balance at 1 January 2004, RZZTME-A-RESR:

3 previously reported REAMER 2,270,561 196 43 - (1,853,75%6) 417424
Effect of changes in accounting policies €3 BREE 2 FE - - - 1 (52,818) (52817)
Balance at 1 January 2004, RZZEME-F-Rz&8

as restated mEj| 2,270,561 196 423 1 (1,906,574) 364,607
Currency translation differences FEERER = = 1,861 = - 1,861
Disposal of subsidiaries HEREAH - - (280) - - (260)
Share-based compensation R - - - 307 - 307
Profit for the year EFaT - - - - 14,478 14,478
Balance at 31 December 2004 RZFEMETZA=T-HZ

g% 2,270,561 196 2,004 308 (1,892,09) 380,973
Balance at 1 January 2005, RZEZRE-A-HZER:

as per above LN 2,270,561 196 2,004 308 (1,892,09) 380,973
Effect of changes in accounting policies €3 BREEH 5 - - - - 1,033 1,033
Balance at 1 January 2005, as restated R =FERE-A-AzER-

JUEY] 2,270,561 196 2,004 308 (1,891,063) 382,006
lssue of shares Lfikh 155,092 - - - - 155,292
Currency translation differences EMERER = = 12,038 = = 12,038
Share-based compensation khMe - - - 746 - 746
Profit for the period iyl - - - - 93,556 93,556
Balance at 30 September 2005 R-ZBEEAR=TAL

gn 2,425,853 196 14,042 1,054 (1,797,507) 643,638
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28 Reserves (continued) 28 f#fE (#&)
Company b NYNE|
Capital  Share-based
redemption compensation
Share reserves reserve Accumulated
premium EXx i} losses Total
(In HK$'000) (A% T AER) KB EE BERE HemE 2RE# as
Balance at 1 January 2004, as RZZEZME-A—-B2
previously reported E8h BERFMER 2,270,561 196 - (1,778,635 492,122
Effect of changes in accounting eHEXEG HE
policies - = 1 (1) =
Balance at 1 January 2004, RZZEME-A—-H2
as restated & WEJ| 2,270,561 196 1 (1,778,636) 492,122
Share-based compensation R M - - 307 - 307
Loss for the year EEFR - - = (1,174) (1,174)
Balance at 31 December 2004 RZZEME+ZA
St-Rz&% 2,270,561 196 308 (1,779,810) 491,255
Balance at 1 January 2005, R-Z2RF-A-Hz
as per above g8 & EX i 2,270,561 196 308 (1,779,810) 491,255
Effect of changes in accounting HEXEG FE
policies - - - - -
Balance at 1 January 2005, RZZETRE-A-B2
as restated &% mES 2,270,561 196 308 (1,779,810) 491,255
Issue of shares Bk 155,292 = = - 155,292
Share-based compensation Riade - - 746 - 746
Loss for the period HRER - - - (3,665) (3,665)
Balance at 30 September 2005 ~ R=-ZZTRfE
hAZTRZ&ER 2,425,853 196 1,054 (1,783,475) 643,628
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29 Creditors and accruals 29 BN R R EFHIRE
Group Company
x& N
As at As at As at As at
30 September 31 December 30 September 31 December
2005 2004 2005 2004
R=-ZZHEF R

FEMF R-22RF R-_FTNF

(In HK$'000) (AE¥ T REM) RA=+RA +ZA=+—-H AA=+R +ZA=+—-H

Trade payables B 5 ENHIE 44,485 54,339 - =
Receipts in advance T8Ut 718 2,712 2,783 - =
Accrued expenses  FE:TE F 65,427 102,683 5,224 3,747
Others H At 26,858 40,382 3,262 2,083
139,482 200,187 8,486 5,830
At 30 September 2005, the ageing analysis of the R=ZFEZRFHLA=1+H BEFEH
trade payables is as follows: BRI T -
Group Company
r5E PN
As at As at As at As at
30 September 31 December 30 September 31 December
2005 2004 2005 2004
R-ZEZHE RZZEZME R-ZEZRE RZZZME
(In HK$'000) (AB®TrAEMN) HA=+H +TZA=1+—H AA=tH +ZA=+—H
Within 3 months  ={EAZ A 14,853 28,100 - =
3 months to
12 months =ZETfdA 18,478 578 - -
Over 1 year —F Lk 11,154 25,661 - =
44,485 54,339 - -
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30 Bank borrowings 30 RITER
Group Company
r5HE AAF
As at As at As at As at
30 September 31 December 30 September 31 December
2005 2004 2005 2004
R-Z2LF RZZTMF R-Z21H§ R_ZTTME
(In HK$'000) (AB®TrAEMN) HA=+H +TZA=1+-—H° WEETE ArEZEETE
Secured MR 433,213 504,126 - =
Unsecured AR 649,128 28,000 33,000 28,000
1,082,341 532,126 33,000 28,000
Current portion of $RITE K Z
bank borrowings Bl ER &8 {5 (315,777) (400,211) (33,000) (28,000)
766,564 131,915 - -
The maturity of bank borrowings is as follows: RITERZEHBEROAT
Group Company
r5E ARAF
As at As at As at As at
30 September 31 December 30 September 31 December
2005 2004 2005 2004
R-Z2LF RZZTMF R-Z21H§ R-ZTME
(In HK$'000) (AB®FTrAEMNM) HA=+H +TZA=1+-—H AA=tH +ZA=+—H
Within 1 year —FEHA 315,777 400,211 33,000 28,000
Between 1 and
2 years E—FEE_F 559,124 = - -
Between 2 and
5 years E_FEEERF 207,440 131,915 - -
Wholly repayable ZERRER
within 5 years BEEE 1,082,341 532,126 33,000 28,000
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30 Bank borrowings (continued)

The carrying amounts of bank borrowings are

Kt &

30 RITEMK (&)

RITERZEEETI AT EEF

denominated in the following currencies: & :
Group Company
K 3 PN
As at As at As at As at
30 September 31 December 30 September 31 December
2005 2004 2005 2004
R-B2ILHF R-ZTTmF R-ZBZILE R_EZME
(In HK$000) ABETrAEN) HNBA=+H +TZA=+—H ARA=+B +ZA=+—H
Hong Kong dollar 75 138,907 197,627 33,000 28,000
Renminbi N 943,434 334,499 - -
1,082,341 532,126 33,000 28,000

The effective interest rates at the balance sheet date
was 5.30% (31 December 2004: 4.31%).

The carrying amounts and fair value of the non-
current borrowings are as follows:

REEH 2 ERFIEA530% (ZFZ
ME+—-"F=+—H :431%) °

FEHERZREABLE R FERT

Carrying amounts Fair values
fREE AV E
As at As at As at As at
30 September 31 December 30 September 31 December
2005 2004 2005 2004
R=-ZZHEE R

(In HK$'000) (KA FTTAEMN) HAB=+H +=A

ZEME R-ZEZLF R-FENF
=t—H ARA=+B +ZA=+—H

Bank borrowings ~ $E{TE X 766,564

131,915 771,846 106,243

The fair values are based on cash flows discounted
using a rate based on the borrowings rate of 5.33%
(31 December 2004: 5.30%).

The carrying amounts of short-term bank borrowings
approximate their fair value.
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30 Bank borrowings (continued) 30 RITER (&)
The Group has the following undrawn borrowing AEBEZ RREBITHREMT :
facilities:
As at As at
30 September 31 December
2005 2004
R=-Z2HF RN_ZTHEF
(In HK$'000) (AEETTREN) SE =hidE B = Sk 4
Floating rate A B[
— expiring within one year — R —F AR E H 43,000 110,000
— expiring beyond one year —R—F AT H 324 =
Fixed rate & F =
— expiring within one year — R —F AR E H - 56,535
— expiring beyond one year — R —FE A1 B 5 271,705 -
315,029 166,535
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31 Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income taxes relate to the same
fiscal authority. The offset amounts are as follows:

31 IEEEFE B

BEREEANTRANAGRDRIAE
EERBHFABERE  MELHRS
M35 Ko [B] — A ERMRR - R A] A5 IR E A
SHEERRTEMSRAELHEE
i o MWIHSBEMT ¢

Group Company
rEE VN
As at As at As at As at
30 September 31 December 30 September 31 December
2005 2004 2005 2004
RZEZRE R-_ZTWEF RZZSTEE R-_ZTTEF
(In HK$'000) (LNABTTAEN) HhA=+RH +tZA=+—H AA=+HB t-A=+—8H
Deferred tax assets: ELERBEE :
— Deferred tax asset — B
to be recovered +TZ@A%
after more than BR BT
12 months WA E 1,474 4,862 - -
— Deferred tax asset B
to be recovered T-EAAR
within 12 months BR BT
HBEE - - - -
1,474 4,862 - =
Deferred tax liabilities: EEFHEEE :
- Deferred tax liability — — &R
to be recovered +TZ@A%
after more than BR BT
12 months HEEE 159,546 3,938 - -
- Deferred tax liability — — &
to be recovered T-EAAR
within 12 months BR BT
HBEEARE - - - -
159,546 3,938 - -

The gross movement on the deferred income tax
account is as follows:

BEFBHERBZEHEENT

Group Company
AEH ALH
As at As at As at As at
30 September 31 December 30 September 31 December
2005 2004 2005 2004
R=-Z221F R_TZNF R-BZTHF R_TTNF
(In HK$'000) (AB®FTrAhEN) RA=+RH +ZA=+—8 AA=+H +ZA=+—H
Beginning of the 8,/ F1)
period/year 924 4,418 - -
Acquisition of subsidiary &g if B 2 A) (159,546) = - =
Recognized in the R R ER
income statement 550 (3,494) - =
End of the period/year i,/ K (158,072) 924 - =
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31 Deferred income tax (continued) 3 IEEFESH ()
The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities R/ FR - EEREBEBEERAEREZ
during the period/year, without taking into g (Rt RERARB A EZEERNGE
consideration the offsetting of balances within the fR2 HEH) T

same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities: EEBESE :
Group
Fair value gains
AEH
(In HK$'000) (AEE T TREL) DN EWE
At 1 January 2004 RZZTZEWME—H—H -
Recognized in the income statement Rk as R R 3,938
At 31 December 2004 R_ZEZEMFE+_-_A=+—8H 3,938
Recognized in the income statement U 25 R TR (3,938)
Acquisition of subsidiary 1t B BfT B 2 A 159,546
At 30 September 2005 R-ZEZERFHAA=TH 159,546
Deferred tax assets: BEEBIEEE :
Group
Tax losses
rEH
(In HK$'000) (AAB¥ T T AREN) BRIEEE
At 1 January 2004 RZZTZEWME—H—H 4,418
Recognized in the income statement U 2 3R T R 444
At 31 December 2004 RZZEZEMFE+_-_A=+—H 4,862
Recognized in the income statement U 25 R FER (3,388)
At 30 September 2005 R-ZEZTHEFHA=1+AH 1,474
Deferred income tax assets are recognized for IR IE AT 15 6 & 2 75 [ FE AR BE B 7% ) 2
tax loss carry-forwards to the extent that the A] 3 38 R SR JE =R A g A1) 24 R 1 P A4S
realisation of the related tax benefit through the HoBHEEBEERR AEEAKRHE
future taxable profits is probable. The Group has R I8 k5 BB 5 1,402,990,000T (=
unrecognised tax losses of HK$1,402,990,000 (2004: S POF : F¥1,405,698,0007T) A
HK$1,405,698,000) to carry forward against future HEEDE R R ERRIA » HPE
taxable income, of which HK$92,204,000 (2004: #092,204,000C (ZZEZ M4 © B
HK$105,935,000) will expire within five years. 105,935,0007T) &R AF AN E A -
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32 Notes to the consolidated cash flow

statement

(a) Reconciliation of operating profit to net cash

144

2 REBRERERME

(a) REBFRALEELECREFH

generated from operations HERR
For the nine For the
months ended year ended
30 September 31 December
2005 2004
BE-_ZZTHFE HE_ZTTNF
hB=+H +ZA=+—H
(In HK$'000) (AAB¥ T T ARENMN) 1k h {8 A IEFE
Operating profit 4 v A 118,014 50,750
Interest income AIFSS PN (2,547) (618)
Depreciation e 2,373 3,015
Amortisation of land use right - b {55 PR R HE 5H 738 44
Realisation of negative goodwill ElEEE ) - (517)
Excess of fair value of net assets EBEFEELTERE
acquired over the cost of W REM B N Al =
acquisition of interests in ERERE
subsidiaries (49,519) -
Net gain on disposal of HEMBARZ
subsidiaries Wz 0% 58 - (5,612)
Change in fair value of KENFERTFEZE
investment properties - (43,314)
Share-based compensation A= 17 B & 746 307
Net (gain)/loss on disposal of HEME  WEMRXRE
property, plant and equipment 2z (W) /BEFE (221) 1
Impairment of a jointly —[E £ R 6 R E
controlled entity - 4,077
Operating profit before working HEEEFA
capital changes 45 5 A 69,584 8,133
Provision written back for BEIRZBEERD
construction project (34,587) -
Provision for consideration FEW AR (E 2 B
receivable - 1,015
Provision for property, plant ME - HER
and equipment BB 504 14
Provision written back for FE B ERE
inventories - (18)
Provision for doubtful debts oREREH B E 493 2,988
Decrease in properties held for FHEMERERS
sale and properties under W% 2R
development 94,871 266,711
Decrease/(increase) in debtors, EERR « & RIBST
deposits and prepayments RIBZmAD () 78 (51,206)
Decrease in creditors and FE AT BR SR % JE 5T
accruals BR I8 2 B (62,569) (117,010)
Net cash generated from KEEE
operations R&FE 68,374 110,627
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32 Notes to the consolidated cash flow 32 %’é’iﬁﬁbmi«ﬁ W'E?. (ﬁ)
statement (continued)

(b) Sale of subsidiaries (b) HEMHBAA
For the nine For the
months ended year ended
30 September 31 December
2005 2004
Bz H=E
—EZEHEF —EZTME
A +=A
=t+HL =t+t—HI1
(In HK$'000) (AB® T TREMN) @ A FE
Net assets disposed of HEZFEE
Cash Re - 14,530
Property, plant and equipment  #1% - BiE &R E - 1,213
Interests in equity securities IX AN 55 5 - -
Investment in a jointly —REHRESERE
controlled entity - 94,597
Debtors, deposits and JEWEER - e &k
prepayments TEAS 5RIE - -
Creditors and accruals MR N EETERTE - (7,024)
Minority interests LR R ER - (4)
Bank loan RITER - (10,343)
Reserves 1k - (280)
- 92,689
Net gain on disposal HES 2 ks F5E - 5,612
- 98,301
Satisfied by THRAR
Cash Re - 96,478
Others Hfb - 1,823
- 98,301
The cash flows contributed and utilised by the EF - FHEZHBARNELHAE
subsidiaries disposed of during the prior year FEREAZRESRE  MEHAR
were not significant to the Group. SEXERERNE °
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32 Notes to the consolidated cash flow
statement (continued)

146

(b) Sale of subsidiaries (continued)

(c)

Analysis of the net inflow in respect of the sale

of subsidiaries

32 ZEBRERERME (&)

(b) HEME2F ()

HERBRFZRAFED

For the nine For the
months ended year ended
2005 2004
BZE HE
—E2hF —ETME
A +=—A
(In HK$'000) (AE® T T REA) =+HL =+—H1I
Cash disposed of EHERS - (14,530)
Cash consideration ReRE - 96,478
- 81,948
Analysis of changes in financing during the (c) B/ EABMEBBH AN
period/year
Share capital Bank Minority
and premium borrowings interests Total
& A% ¥
(In HK$000) NBB T REL RROEE RITEM i 3R A& & wmE
At 1 January 2004 RZZTME
—HA—H 2,554,180 532,708 93,453 3,180,341
Net cash generated ~ BB EKEL,/
from/(used in) (AR 282
financing activities RE - 7,396 (20,942) (13,546)
Sale of subsidiaries HEHBARR - (10,343) (4) (10,347)
Share of loss PG B - - 11,382 11,382
Exchange differences  [& & 2= & - 2,365 253 2,618
At 1 January 2005 RZTTHE
—HA—H 2,554,180 532,126 84,142 3,170,448
Net cash generated ~ BB EKEL,/
from/(used in) (AR 282
financing activities RE - (24,596) 1,282 (23,314)
Acquisition in W B B /&8 A
subsidiaries 327,838 568,065 181,349 1,077,252
Share of loss ik B - - 4,693 4,693
Exchange differences  [& & %= & - 6,746 1,022 7,768
At 30 September R=ZEZ0E
2005 AB=+H 2,882,018 1,082,341 272,488 4,236,847
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34

35

Contingent liabilities

At 30 September 2005, the Company issued guarantees
to the extent of HK$273,195,000 (31 December 2004:
HK$358,077,000) of which HK$263,456,000 (31
December 2004: HK$324,156,000) was utilized in
respect of bank borrowings granted to its subsidiaries.

Management anticipates that no material liabilities
will arise from the above bank and other guarantees
which arose in the ordinary course of business.

Pledge of assets

As at 30 September 2005, the Group's bank loans were
secured by certain investment properties, completed
properties held for sale, properties held for development,
properties under development and land use rights with
carrying values of HK$784,339,000 (31 December 2004:
HK$812,800,000) and cash deposits of HK$88,800,000
(31 December 2004: HK$105,900,000).

33
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HZREE

R_ZZERFAA=+H AAFH
EH Z ERA L7 ¥ 273,195,000
—ETNFEF+_A=+—H: &K
358,077,0007t) @ EHFHETFHBA
AlZBITERE SHABSE
263,456,000 (ZZEZTWF+ ==
+—H8 : &%¥324,156,0007T) °

EEERY LARBEERFBET
EEZRITREMERE TS HRE
MEXRER -

EEHAH

R_ZZERFALA=1TH A£EZ
HRITE T AR E B4 % 784,339,000
T(ZETNFE+=—A=+—8 : B
812,800,0007t) 2 & TR EWZ ~ #F
HEZEZKYE  HEEZERASE
ZUE - BRPYER T HERRE
LA & 38 77 378 % 88,800,0007T
—ETMEF+_A=+—H8: B
105,900,0007T) {E &K 3 °

Commitments 35 A& iE
(a) Capital commitments (a) BEAREIE
Capital expenditure in respect of properties under REER - BEZERYEED
development at the balance sheet date but not REHEZERRXHT :
yet incurred is as follows:
As at As at
30 September 31 December
2005 2004
R-ZZEZ2RE R-ZZTTWMHF
(In HK$'000) (ABM T TRERMN) hB=+H +t=ZA=+—8©
Contracted but not provided for B & A 18 KRB 65,047 5,418
Authorised but not contracted for EBEREERZLD 16,618 124,989
81,665 130,407
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35 Commitments (continued) 35 H&IE (&)

(b) Operating lease commitments

The Group had future aggregate minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases
on land and buildings are as follows:

(b) EERANEARE

AEERENTHELEREM
ERARI Mz ZERSHTRE
BIOT

As at As at

30 September 31 December

2005 2004

R-ZEZERF R-ZEZTMF

(In HK$'000) (AE®B T T REA) hB=+H +ZA=+—H

Not later than one year E—FR 1,895 1,895
Later than one year and F_EZFERFNRN

not later than five years 1,079 2,435

2,974 4,330

(c) Future minimum rental payments receivable

The Group had future minimum rental payments
receivable under non-cancellable leases in respect
of land and buildings are as follows:

(c) RIRHEMEWE S KA

AEERBEERLIHBEEFTZD
A BUHTE 8 2 R R & (R R &

(In HK$'000) (ABE T TREMN)
Not later than one year F—FN
Later than one year and FZEFRFENA
not later than five years
Over five years hF1&

HIEAT :
As at As at
30 September 31 December
2005 2004
R=-ZZBHF R-ZETOEF
hB=+H +ZA=+—H
56,306 24,137
129,649 41,076
24,785 16,681
210,740 81,894
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36 Business combinations

On 14 July 2005, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with CPL (China) Pte Ltd (“CPL
China”) to acquire 54.78% interest in the shares of
and debt owing by Supreme Asia Investments Limited
at a consideration of HK$327,838,000 which shall
be satisfied by the issue and allotment of
1,725,426,776 new shares at HK19 cents per share.
The acquisition was completed on 22 September
2005.

SAIl contributed no net profit or loss to the Group for
the period from 22 September 2005 to 30 September
2005. If the acquisition had occurred on 1 January
2005, the revenue and net loss of the Group for the
nine months period ended 30 September 2005 would
have been approximately Nil and HK$7,115,702
respectively.

Details of net assets acquired and goodwill are as
follows:

Annual Report 2005 — EZ H F F3{

36 ¥4 6t

RZEZTRAFEATWEE  AEEHE
CPL (China) Pte Ltd ([CPL Chinal) &T
B & W A UKEE Supreme  Asia
Investments Limitedf% 9 2 54.78 %1
mREMRXREERE REAEK
327,838,0007T * 2B AT KA
E%1,725,426,776/5 # IR 1D - BRXIEE
B2 AT - BEWER =
EERENATZARERK -

H-_ZEERAFNA-_+-_HE=_ZZ
AFENA=FHIEHRE @ SAIEE R AR
EEEEUE BB FRE - Wz BEIK
BER-_ZTRAF—F—HB%4 &
EEHEE-_TTRFNLA=THILA
BAHMZ A REGEFZFESNA
K B ¥7,115,7027T °

FIRBEREERBEBZHBOT ¢

(In HK$'000) (ABBFTRENL)
Purchase consideration WERE
Direct costs relating to the acquisition BRI RSB B 2 B BN 4,720
Fair value of shares issued EETROZATFEE 327,838
Assignment of debts B (109,311)
Deposit received for 5% minority interest 5% D BB RER KM EE (16,063)
Total purchase consideration B EERE 207,184
Fair value of net assets acquired FrikE S EE 2 A TE

— shown as below — RN XFIR (185,259)
Deferred tax warranty by EEMEFEERAAZ

Centrepoint Properties Ltd i FE T TR R B (71,444)
Excess of fair value of net assets acquired PR R & E 2 AP EBT

over the cost of acquisition of interests I REMT B A Al e 2

in subsidiaries AR 2 BiEE (49,519)

The adoption of HK$0.19 as the fair value of the
shares issued was based on a fair value assessment
by the Group with reference to a valuation report
prepared by a professional valuer. The Group has not
adopted the market value of HK$0.139 as at the date
of issuance of consideration share because the Group
considered that the market price does not reflect the
fair value of shares issued in view of the thin trading
volume.

RABEONITIERETRND ZAF
BNERASE2EEXEEMER
ZIEEREMELH 2 X FEE - &
SETERAZRTREROBEHZM
BE0.1397L - ARAKERRMS
REEARD - A% EIL T AR
TR ZAFE -
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36 Business combinations (continued)

The assets and liabilities arising from the acquisition

are as follows:

36 X#K &6 (F)

WHERBEELCEERABOT :

Acquiree’s
carrying
amount
Fair value #HWEAZ
(In HK$'000) (A HE T T AR AFE FREE
Cash and cash equivalents BekBeEEHER 28,858 28,858
Property, plant and equipment M - WEREE 139 139
Property under development ERP Y 1,254,431 615,944
Deferred tax assets RIERIBEE - 51,154
Receivables FE W kI8 9,194 9,194
Payables FE 1 3k 3B (1,584) (1,584)
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary RERK B AR ZFE (199,461) (199,461)
Amount due to minority interest ROBIR R 2 KIB (4,388) (4,388)
Borrowings B (568,065) (568,065)
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 31) IEEF B & E (B FE31) (159,546) =
Net assets FEE 359,578 (68,209)
Minority interests DEE RS (174,319)
Net assets acquired BT Ui B8 5 & B 185,259
Purchase consideration settled LAIR & T UE B 4%
in cash (4,720)
Cash and cash equivalents in FiERB AR 2R e R
subsidiaries acquired ReEEIEAR 28,858
Cash inflow on acquisition WEEFTSIR &R 24,138
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37 Related party transactions

The ultimate holding company of the Group is Fraser
and Neave, Limited, a company incorporated in
Singapore.

The following is a summary of significant related party
transactions carried out in the normal course of

Group's business during the period/year:

(a) Related party transactions
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37V MEALRS

REBZHEERATRIESIEER
DNE B—RKRFMEEMAZZ A
E—J o
TXARE/ FREAESEBEED
BEPETZEABEATRZ 28
g g

(a) BEALXS

For the For the

nine months year

ended ended

30 September 31 December

2005 2004

BZE HZE

—EBAHF —ZEEMEF

A +=A

Note =+HL =+—Hit

(In HK$'000) (ABEETTREML) M @A FE
Design audit fee BETEZE (i) 134 33
Quantity surveying fee IRAZEE (i) 480 105
Property management fee MEEEE (ii) 505 79
1,119 217

(i) The fees are payable to JURONG International
Constructors (Suzhou) Co., Ltd (“JIC (Suzhou)")
in accordance with the terms of agreements.
Details of arrangement is as below:

On 17 November 2004, Vision (Shenzhen)
Business Park Co., Ltd (“VSBP”), a 95% owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a services
contract (the “Design Audit Services Contract”)
with JIC (Suzhou) whereby JIC (Suzhou) agreed
to provide certain design audit services relating
to the development project of a property located
at Vision (Shenzhen) Business Park, Shenzhen,
China (the “VSBP Phase 2A Project”), for a service
fee of RMB175,000 (approximately HK$168,000).

() %EBRABERBHEZGRENTH
JER B R T 42 (BR M) B PR 2 7] ([#8 FREY
BREM) D 2ER - REFz BN
™

R-EZNEFE+—A+tH - AQA
HEIS %R Z B A RIEI B &
HREEER AR (DRYIEFT]) B2
BRI (BRM) 5T SRS & 49 ([RRETE
BZEH]) Bk MEBEE GEIN) R
B —BARAPRERYEGREE
M REIE B REE T RABERE
(TR E2ABR]) - REE
B AR 175,000 (4 A&
168,0007T) °
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37 Related party transactions (continued)

152

(a) Related party transactions (continued)

(if)

Besides, VSBP and JIC (Suzhou) also entered into
a services contract (the “Quantity Surveying
Services Contract”) whereby JIC (Suzhou) agreed
to provide certain quantity surveying services
relating to the VSBP Phase 2A and Phase 2B
Project. For the Phase 2A project, a service fee
of RMB780,000 (approximately HK$750,000) will
be charged for a duration of 23 months. For
continuation of services beyond the stipulated
duration of 23 months, a monthly service fee of
RMB33,900 (approximately HK$33,000) will be
charged. For the Phase 2B project, a service fee
of RMB1,550,000 (approximately HK$1,490,000)
will be charged for a duration of 26 months. For
continuation of services beyond the stipulated
duration of 26 months, a monthly service fee of
RMB59,600 (approximately HK$57,000) will be
charged. JIC (Suzhou) is indirectly wholly-owned
by JTC Corporation, a statutory board
incorporated in the Republic of Singapore and
wholly-owned by the government of Singapore.
JTC Consultancy Services Holding Pte Ltd., a
wholly-owned subsidiary of JTC Corporation, is
running the operation of JIC (Suzhou). JTC
Corporation, through its wholly-owned subsidiary
Ascendas Land International Pte Ltd, indirectly
owns 100% of Riverbook Group Limited, which
holds 17.17% of the Company.

The fee is payable to THSP Property Management
Corp. in accordance with the terms of agreement.

On 1 April 2005, Vision Huaqging (Beijing)
Development Co., Ltd (“Vision Huaqging”), a 60%
owned subsidiary of the Company, and THSP
Property Management Corp. (“THSP"), entered
into a Property Management Contract whereby
Vision Huaging has agreed to appoint THSP as
the property manager to provide property
management services for Vision International
Centre (“VIC") during the period from 1 April
2005 to 14 September 2006 at a fee which is
calculated as to 8% of the total monthly gross
management fees received from the tenants of
the VIC. The maximum annual cap on the
manager’s remuneration is amounted to
RMB 1,200,000 (approximately HK$1,154,000).
THSP is 80% beneficially owned by Tsinghua
Science Park Co., Ltd which is a 40% substantial
shareholder of Vision Huaging.

37 MEALXRS (&)
(a) BMEALXS (8)

e AN+ R Ik T R B A JBR B PR
FBEMFTZ—ERFELH ([T
HEEE4])  Hit - WEBE
(BRI B2 BRI BT 2A
BN E2BHEATHE R E T IR
BERH - LE2ABHBE M
= R E R AKE780,0007T
(%97 %750,0007T) * #57231(E
A AUER o i L2318 A &
HERERT - 85 8 KEAR
B8 AR 33,9007t (K75
33,0007T) ° B E2BHATE A M
= ' lR7%% &/ AKE1,550,000
L (#)7%%1,490,0007T) * #%
2616 7 A HER o il 7 £ it 261E
RBEBRERT - 85 A K
AR S B A R 59,6007 (4745
#57,0007T) © ¥4 R B RS (BR )
HUEREEREZEHRS - 18
JBR &= B T3 54 % A0 3 2k R0 B o i
K ZZEEZBE » WAHFM
FRFE2EHE - MEBEE2
& [ff B A & JTC Consultancy
Services Holding Pte Ltd& & £
B (BRN) - MRS E
FEiBE 2 EKNE A 7 Ascendas
Land International Pte Ltdf& £
# A Riverbook Group Limited&
&0 # #z © Riverbook Group
Limited BB AR A E17.17 %4

= ©

(i) ZEBRERBEWGEZIGERE
NTERESMEEEERE
FREIZER -

R-ZTEZERFWA—H ' AR
A HE A 60%HE 25 2 A A) BT
BULR)EXBREBRAA
(TR FEE]) Bt REBYWE
EEERETAA([EEFY
XA UWEERAEDN B
I BHEBEREREES
MELBYEKE R_ZTZTH
FWA—BE-_ZT A FNA
+THESHEAETER AR
(IVIC)) IREEMEEERE - &
B BBVICEFERE A B4R
H28%rtE - EBEMEZF
B LR AEARY1,200,0007T
(#976%1,154,0007T) ° EFY
¥ hAERRGD B R A G #
B80% R  ZHHEIERKRMN B
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37 Related party transactions (continued) 37 BEAELRS (&)
(b) Amounts due to related parties (b) ENBREALZFRE
As at As at
30 September 31 December
2005 2004

R=BREF R-FEMF
AA=+E +=A=+-H

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT T

Amounts due to JIC (Suzhou) JE A< 8 BB B B2 (B W) 3R IE 276 157

Amounts due to THSP AN E S 505 79

781 236

() Key management compensation has been (c) FEEBABZHME XM ®R
disclosed in note 12 of the financial statements. REIFE1I2R W E -

153



